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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except per-share amounts)

March 31,
2015 December 31, 2014
Assets (unaudited)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 447.. 3% 344.t
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $5.7 for both periods 1,448.¢ 1,561.:
Merchandise inventory 357.( 337.t
Miscellaneous receivables 174.1 155.€
Prepaid expenses and other 58.t 54.7
Total current assets 2,485.¢ 2,453.¢
Property and equipment, net 135.1 137.2
Equity investments 86.7 86.7
Goodwill 2,215.: 2,217.¢
Other intangible assets, net 1,128.¢ 1,168.¢
Deferred financing costs, net 34.: 33.C
Other assets 2.€ 3.2
Total assets $ 6,088.¢ $ 6,099.¢
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable—trade $ 695.1 $ 704.C
Accounts payable—inventory financing 289.¢ 332.1
Current maturities of long-term debt 154 154
Deferred revenue 82.: 81.:
Accrued expenses:
Compensation 102.: 130.1
Interest 17.2 28.1
Sales taxes 27.1 29.1
Advertising 35.4 34.C
Income taxes 47 .4 0.2
Other 113.¢ 113.7
Total current liabilities 1,425.¢ 1,468.(
Long-term liabilities:
Debt 3,190.¢ 3,174.¢
Deferred income taxes 450.( 475.C
Other liabilities 46.7 45.¢
Total long-term liabilities 3,687.! 3,695.¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred shares, $0.01 par value, 100.0 sharber@éd, no shares issued or outstanding for
periods — —
Common shares, $0.01 par value, 1,000.0 sharesragti for both periods; 172.5 and 172.2
shares issued and outstanding, respectively 1.7 1.7
Paid-in capital 2,718.¢ 2,711.¢
Accumulated deficit (,717.9 (1,760.9

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (27.€) (16.€)




Total shareholders’ equity 975.t 936.£

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 6,088.t $ 6,099.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements.
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per-share amounts)

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and administrative expenses
Advertising expense

Income from operations

Interest expense, net

Net loss on extinguishments of long-term debt
Other income, net

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Net income per common share:
Basic
Diluted

(unaudited)

Weighted-average number of common shares outstgndin

Basic
Diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014
2,755 $ 2,652.¢
2,298 2,227

456 425.:
275.F 260.¢
29.4 28.F
151.€ 135.¢
(44.5) (50.1)
(24.9) (5.4)
45 0.5
87.C 80.
(32.9) (29.9)
547 $ 50.¢
03z $ 0.3¢
03z $ 0.3¢
172.1 169.€
173F 172.:
0.067¢ $ 0.042:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements.
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014

Net income $ 547 $ 50.¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment (net oftamefit of $1.4 million and $0.0 million, respeety) (11.0 (3.9
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (11.0) (3.9
Comprehensive income $ 437 $ 47.C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2014

CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in millions)
(unaudited)

Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Accumulated

Equity-based compensation expense _

Stock option exercises

Common shares issued for equity-based compensation __

Excess tax benefits from equity-based compensat _

Coworker Stock Purchase Plan
Dividends declared

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment _

Balance at March 31, 2015

Other Total
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Loss Equity
— $ — 172z ¢ 17 $ 2,711¢ $ (1,760 $ (16.6) $ 936.£
— — — 4.7 — — 4.7
— — — — 0.t — — 0.t
— 0.2 — — — — —
— — — 0.1 — — 0.1
— 0.1 — 1.7 — — 1.7
— — — — — (11.9) — (11.9)
— — — — — 54.7 — 54.7
— — — — — (11.0 (11.0
- $ — 1728 ¢ 17 $ 2,718¢ $ (1,7179) % (276 $ 975.%

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 547 $ 50.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2.t 52.C
Equity-based compensation expense 4.7 .3
Deferred income taxes (22.€) (22.7)
Amortization of deferred financing costs, debt pim, and debt discount, net 1.t 1.€
Net loss on extinguishments of long-term debt 24.% 5.4
Income from equity method investment (4.0 —
Mark-to-market loss on interest rate cap agreements 1.2 —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 105.¢ 113.2
Merchandise inventory (19.9) (6.5)
Other assets (23.]) (25.7)
Accounts payable-trade (7.0 21.t
Other current liabilities 8.7 52.C
Long-term liabilities 1.1 0.7
Net cash provided by operating activities 177.¢ 246.%
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (20.0 (9.3
Payment of accrued charitable contribution reldatethe MPK Coworker Incentive Plan |l — (20.9
Premium payments on interest rate cap agreements (0.5 —
Net cash used in investing activities (10.5) (30.9)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt (3.9 (3.9
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 525.( —
Payments to extinguish long-term debt (525.9) (79.5)
Payments of debt financing costs (6.8 —
Net change in accounts payable-inventory financing (42.9) (6.4)
Proceeds from stock option exercises 0.t 0.1
Proceeds from Coworker Stock Purchase Plan 1.7 —
Dividends paid (12.9) (7.9
Excess tax benefits from equity-based compensation 0.1 —
Net cash used in financing activities (62.7) (97.0
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cashurglents 2.7 (0.5
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 102.¢ 118.¢
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period 344.t 188.1
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period $ 447«  $ 306.7
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ (53.1) $ (16.7)
Taxes paid, net $ 4.9 % (9.5)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Summary of SignificanAccounting Policie:

Description of Business

CDW Corporation (“Parent”) is a Fortune 500 company a leading provider of integrated informatiechinology (“IT”) solutions
to small, medium and large business, governmentatthn and healthcare customers in the U.S. anddza The Company's
offerings range from discrete hardware and softyapelucts to integrated IT solutions such as mighitiecurity, data center
optimization, cloud computing, virtualization anallaboration.

Throughout these notes, the terms the “Company™&miV” refer to Parent and its 100% owned subsid&r

Parent has two 100% owned subsidiaries, CDW LLCG@RW Finance Corporation. CDW LLC is an lllinoigiiited liability
company that, together with its 100% owned subsg&Baholds all material assets and conducts aihess activities and operations
of the Company. CDW Finance Corporation is a Detavearporation formed for the sole purpose of @ctia co-issuer of certain
debt obligations as described in Note 8 and doehald any material assets or engage in any busmetvities or operations.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidatearfaial statements as of March 31, 2015 and fothitee months ended March
31, 2015 and 2014 (the “consolidated financialkstants”) have been prepared in conformity with aatiog principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAARi)dhe rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) for interim financial statements. Acdorgly, certain information and footnote disclosirermally included in financial
statements prepared in accordance with GAAP hager bendensed or omitted pursuant to such rulesegndations. These
consolidated financial statements should be reagmjunction with the audited consolidated finahstatements included in the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl December 31, 2014 (the “ December 31, 20Bhéilal statements” he
significant accounting policies used in preparingse consolidated financial statements were appheslibasis consistent with those
reflected in the December 31, 2014 financial states In the opinion of management, the consolitfitancial statements contain
all adjustments (consisting of a normal, recurradgure) necessary to present fairly the Compameasial position, results of
operations, comprehensive income, cash flows aadg#s in shareholders' equity as of the datesarttid periods indicated. The
unaudited consolidated statements of operationsuich interim periods reported are not necessiadigative of results for the full
year.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of Parent and its 100% ownbdigiaries. All
intercompany transactions and accounts are eligdniatconsolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in accordance with GAAP requires managenoemiatke use of certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosur@atingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statememdsthhe reported amounts of revenue and expensegydbe reported periods. The
Company bases its estimates on historical expe¥iand on various other assumptions that managdméeaves are reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which fitrenbasis for making judgments about carrying \&bfeassets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Aaesllts could differ from those estimates.

The notes to the consolidated financial statemem$ained in the December 31, 2014 financial stateéminclude an additional
discussion of the significant accounting policias @stimates used in the preparation of the Conipaoysolidated financial
statements. There have been no material changlee @ompany's significant accounting policies astth@ates during the three
months ended March 31, 2015 .
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

2. Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Customers Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud ComputinceAgement

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBl (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaASU”) 2015-05 that
amends the guidance to help entities evaluatedteuating for fees paid by a customer in a clouthiating arrangement by
providing guidance as to whether an arrangemehides the sale or license of software. The newangd is effective for the
Company beginning in the first quarter of 2016 hvearly adoption permitted. An entity can elecadmpt the amendments either
prospectively to all arrangements entered into atemially modified after the effective date or ospectively While the Company i:
currently evaluating the impact of the standardpits not expect that this standard will have a&n@timpact on its consolidated
financial position, results of operations and ciaivs.

Debt Issuance Costs

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03 that adgethe presentation of debt issuance costs gueddime amendments in this
ASU require that debt issuance costs related éxagnized debt liability be presented in the badesiteet as a direct deduction from
the carrying amount of that debt liability, conerstwith debt discounts. The recognition and mesament guidance for debt issual
costs are not affected by the amendments in thid. ABe new guidance is effective for the Compangyifx@ng in the first quarter ¢
2016, with early adoption permitted. The standaguires retrospective applicationtbé new guidance to all prior periods (i.e., the
balance sheet for each period presented is ad)u$téidle the Company is currently evaluating the impact efstandard, it does r
expect that this standard will have a material iohjpa its consolidated financial position, resolt®perations and cash flows.

Consolidation

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02 éina¢nds the current consolidation guidance. The dments affect both the
variable interest entity (VIE) and voting interesttity (VOE) consolidation models. The new guidaisceffective for the Company
beginning in the first quarter of 2016, with eaailjoption permitted. The standard allows for eithéuxll retrospective approach or a
modified retrospective approach. This new guidasemt expected to have a material impact on thmgamy’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations and ciaivs.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2008; which clarifies the standard for recognizingerue from contracts with customers.
standard outlines a single comprehensive modedrtties to use in accounting for revenue arishogf contracts with customers ¢
supersedes the most current revenue recognitiatagoe. The standard is effective for the Compaigyniméng in the first quarter of
2017 and early adoption is not permitted. The stethdllows for either a full retrospective approacta modified retrospective
approach. The Company is currently evaluating tygeict that the standard will have on its consadiddinancial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

3. Inventory Financing Agreements

The Company has entered into agreements with nditeincial intermediaries to facilitate the pursbaf inventory from various
suppliers under certain terms and conditions, asrd®ed below. These amounts are classified sega@ accounts payable-
inventory financing on the accompanying consoliddtalance sheets. The Company does not incur senest expense associated
with these agreements as balances are paid wheatbelue.

The following table presents the amounts includeddcounts payable-inventory financing:

December 31,

(in millions) March 31, 2015 2014

Revolving Loan inventory financing agreement $ 289.2 % 330.1
Other inventory financing agreements 0.€ 2.C
Accounts payable-inventory financing $ 289.t  § 332.]
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The Company's Revolving Loan described in Noteldwéncludes an inventory floorplan sidi&eility in conjunction with the relate
Revolving Loan inventory financing agreement witfinancial intermediary to facilitate the purchasenventory from a certain
vendor. Amounts outstanding under the RevolvingrLim&entory financing agreement are unsecured anedimterest bearing.

The Company also maintains other inventory finag@greements with financial intermediaries to featié the purchase of inventc
from certain vendors. At March 31, 2015 and Decandie 2014 , amounts owed under other inventorgrfaing agreements of $0.6
million and $2.0 million , respectively, were caéigalized by the inventory purchased under thesnfiing agreements and a second
lien on the related accounts receivable.

4, Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was as follows:

Interest December 31,

(dollars in millions) Rate® March 31, 2015 2014

Senior secured asset-based revolving credit facilit —% $ — —
Senior secured term loan facility 3.25% 1,509.° 1,513t
Unamortized discount on senior secured term loailitia (3.5 (3.7
Senior notes due 2019 8.5% — 503.¢
Unamortized premium on senior notes due 2019 — 1.3
Senior notes due 2022 6.C% 600.( 600.(
Senior notes due 2023 5.C% 525.( —
Senior notes due 2024 5.5% 575.( 575.(
Total long-term debt 3,206.: 3,190.(
Less current maturities of long-term debt (15.9 (15.9
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 3,190.¢ $ 3,174.¢

(1) Interest rate at March 31, 2015 .

At March 31, 2015 , the Company remained in conmgkawith the covenants under its various crediéagrents. Under the credit

agreement governing the Senior Secured Term LoaititiFdhere are restrictions on the ability of CDWpay dividends, make shz
repurchases, redeem subordinated debt and engageadin other transactions. At March 31, 2018,d@mount of CDW'’s restricted
payment capacity under the Senior Secured Term Eaaility was $ 765.9 million .

Senior Secured Ass8ased Revolving Credit Facility Revolving Loafi)

At March 31, 2015 , the Company had no outstantorgowings under the Revolving Loan, $2.1 millidruadrawn letters of credit
and $280.1 million reserved related to the floan@ab-facility. At March 31, 2015, the borrowingde was $1,224.9 million based
on the amount of eligible inventory and accounteieable balances as of February 28, 2015. The @oynpould have borrowed up
to an additional $942.7 million under the Revolvirgan at March 31, 2015 .

The Revolving Loan includes an inventory floorptarb-facility that is related to the Revolving Laamentory financing agreement
with a financial intermediary. At March 31, 201fhe financial intermediary reported an outstandiance of $280.1 million under
the Revolving Loan inventory financing agreemefiite Bmount included on the Company's consolidatithba sheet as of

March 31, 2015 as accounts payable-inventory fimgnielated to the Revolving Loan inventory finargiagreement of $289.2
million includes a $9.1 million accrual for amoumtgtransit.

Senior Secured Term Loan FacilityTerm Loari)

At March 31, 2015, the outstanding principal antafrthe Term Loan was $1,509.7 million , exclud$®5 million in unamortized
discount. The total net leverage ratio was 3.0 atdid 31, 2015 . An interest rate of 3.25% , consgtisf the 1% LIBOR floor plus a
2.25% margin, was in effect during the three-m@etiod ended March 31, 2015 .
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

In order to manage the risk associated with chaimgiggerest rates on borrowings under the Termnl,.dlae Company maintains
interest rate cap agreements. During the year eddedmber 31, 2014, the Company entered into fenritgerest rate cap
agreements with a combined notional amount of ELMillion . In the first quarter of 2015, the Cpamy entered into six interest
rate cap agreements at a rate of 2.0% with a cadiiotional amount of $400.0 million . Under thd 2@&greements, the Company
made premium payments totaling $0.5 million to¢banterparties in exchange for the right to receagments equal to the amount,
if any, by which the three-month LIBOR exceeds 28%ing the agreement period. The interest rateagapements are effective
from January 14, 2015 through January 14, 2017 fainealue of the Company's interest rate cap emgents was $0.9 million and
$1.7 million at March 31, 2015 and December 31 £20kspectively. Previously, the Company had méerést rate cap agreements
with a combined notional amount of $1,150.0 millibat expired on January 14, 2015.

The Company's interest rate cap agreements hau®patdesignated as cash flow hedges of interestisit for GAAP accounting
purposes. The interest rate cap agreements analegkcat fair value on the Company’s consolidatddrze sheet in other assets each
period, with changes in fair value recorded diretilinterest expense in the Company's consolidstiément of operations. The -
value of the Company's interest rate cap agreenmolassified as Level 2 in the fair value hiehgrc

8.5%Senior Notes due 20192019 Senior Not€3

At March 31, 2015 , there were no outstanding 28&8ior Notes.

On March 3, 2015, the proceeds from the issuantieea?023 Senior Notes, discussed below, along eeitih on hand, were
deposited with the trustee to redeem the remai®&t.9 million aggregate principal amount of th&a2®enior Notes at a
redemption price of 104.25% of the principal amawaeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest dputaot including, the date of
redemption, April 2, 2015. On the same date, themture governing the 2019 Senior Notes was sadisfind discharged and the
Company was released from its remaining obligabiptthe trustee. In connection with this redemptibe, Company recorded a loss
on extinguishment of long-term debt of $24.3 millio the consolidated statement of operationstertiree months ended

March 31, 2015 , which was comprised of $4.2 miillfor the write-off of the remaining unamortizedeteed financing fees and a
redemption premium of $21.4 million , partially sét by $1.3 million for the write-off of the remaig unamortized premium.

5.0%Senior Notes due 20232023 Senior Noté3

On March 3, 2015, CDW LLC and CDW Finance Corpamtias co-issuers, completed the issuance of $528i6n aggregate
principal amount of 2023 Senior Notes at par. F#&6.8 million related to the 2023 Senior Noteseveapitalized as deferred
financing costs and are being amortized over tiva té the notes on a straight-line basis. The 28@8ior Notes will mature on
September 1, 2023 and bear interest at a rat®%§ per annum, payable semi-annually on March 1Semtember 1 of each year.

CDW LLC and CDW Finance Corporation are the co-gsswf the 2023 Senior Notes and the obligatiomeuthe notes are
guaranteed by Parent and each of CDW LLC's dimedtiadirect, wholly owned, domestic subsidiarieke 2023 Senior Notes
indenture contains negative covenants that, amtray things, place restrictions and limitationstio@ ability of Parent and each of
CDW LLC's direct and indirect 100% owned domestibsidiaries to enter into sale and lease-backaaimns, incur additional
secured indebtedness, and create liens. The imdegwerning the 2023 Senior Notes does not comtayrfinancial covenants.

Fair Value

The fair values of the 2022, 2023, and 2024 SeMaies were estimated using quoted market priceslémtical assets or liabilities
that are traded in over-the-counter secondary netkat are not considered active. The fair vafub® Term Loan was estimated
using dealer quotes for identical assets or ligbdliin markets that are not considered active s€guently, the Company's long-term
debt is classified as Level 2 within the fair vahierarchy.
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

The approximate fair values and related carryingesof the Company's long-term debt, includingentr maturities, were as

follows:
March 31, December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014
Fair value $ 3,282.( $ 3,208.°
Carrying value 3,209.° 3,192..
5. Earnings per Share

The numerator for both basic and diluted earniregsspare is net income. The denominator for basigiegs per share is the
weighted average number of common shares outsiguddiring the period. The dilutive effect of outstary restricted stock,
restricted stock units, stock options, and Cowofexck Purchase Plan units is reflected in the aemator for diluted earnings per
share using the treasury stock method.

The following is a reconciliation of basic sharesitluted shares:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014

Weighted-average shares - basic 172.1 169.€
Effect of dilutive securities 14 2.7
Weighted-average shares - diluted 173t 172.3

There were 0.4 million and 0.1 million potentiahmmon shares excluded from diluted earnings peesfaaithe threemonth period:
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively,@siticlusion would have had an anti-dilutive effec

6. Commitments and Contingencie

The Company is party to various legal proceedihgs arise in the ordinary course of its businessclvinclude commercial,
intellectual property, employment, tort and othiggtion matters. The Company is also subjectuditeby federal, state and local
authorities, by various partners, group purchasiggnizations and customers, including governmgeneies, relating to purchases
and sales under various contracts. In additionCiw@pany is subject to indemnification claims uneemious contracts. From time to
time, certain customers of the Company file voluntzetitions for reorganization or liquidation umdee U.S. bankruptcy laws. In
such cases, certain pre-petition payments recdiyedde Company could be considered preference iardsubject to return to the
bankruptcy administrator.

As of March 31, 2015 , the Company does not belibaéethere is a reasonable possibility that anteriad loss exceeding the
amounts already recognized for these proceedingjsratters, if any, has been incurred. Howeveruttimate resolutions of these
proceedings and matters are inherently unprediet®{d such, the Company's financial condition asiits of operations could be
adversely affected in any particular period byuhé&vorable resolution of one or more of these @edings or matters.

7. Segment Informatior

Segment information is presented in accordance avithanagement approach,” which designates thenalteeporting used by the
chief operating decision-maker for making decisiand assessing performance as the source of thp&y's reportable segments.
The Company's segments are organized in a mannsistent with which separate financial informatisvailable and evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision-makedétiding how to allocate resources and in asseggrfgrmance.

The Company has tweportable segments: Corporate, which is compipsidarily of private sector business customers, Rnblic,
which is comprised of government agencies and aducand healthcare institutions. The Company hiothree other operating
segments, CDW Advanced Services, Canada, and Kéllapgo Limited (“Kelway”), which do not meet thep@table segment
guantitative thresholds and, accordingly, are codbiin an all other category (“Other”).

12
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CDW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

The Company has centralized logistics and headepsaitinctions that provide services to the segmaiis logistics function
includes purchasing, distribution and fulfillmeetgices to support both the Corporate and Pubfimsats. As a result, costs and
intercompany charges associated with the logitiestion are fully allocated to both of these segtadased on a percent of sales.
The centralized headquarters function providesisesin areas such as accounting, information w@olgy, marketing, legal and
coworker services. Headquarters' function costsatenot allocated to the segments are includeenthe heading of

“Headquarters” in the tables below. Depreciatiopemse is included in Headquarters as it is notatkd among segments or used in
measuring segment performance.

The Company allocates resources to and evaluatEspance of its segments based on net sales, m¢lmss) from operations and
Adjusted EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure as definechenCompany's credit agreements. However, the Coyripasiconcluded that
income (loss) from operations is a more useful mesam terms of discussion of operating resultst esa GAAP measure.

Segment information for total assets and capitpkesitures is not presented as such informationtisised in measuring segment
performance or allocating resources between segment

Selected Segment Financial Information

The following table presents information about @@mpany’s segments for the three months ended MalrcB015 and 2014:

(in millions) Corporate Public Other Headquarters Total
Three Months Ended March 31, 2015:

Net sales $ 1574.C $ 1,005.¢ $ 1752 % — % 2,755.:
Income (loss) from operations 110.Z 59.¢ 10.1 (28.9) 151.¢
Depreciation and amortization expense (24.0 (10.9 2.9 (15.9 (52.5)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014:

Net sales $ 1,505.¢ $ 969.¢ $ 176.¢ $ — 3 2,652.
Income (loss) from operations 101.1 54.1 6.5 (25.9 135.¢
Depreciation and amortization expense (24.7 (10.9 2.0 (14.9 (52.0
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8. Supplemental Guarantor Information

The 2022 Senior Notes, the 2023 Senior Notes am@@R4 Senior Notes are, and, prior to being reddamfull, the 2019 Senior
Notes, the Senior Subordinated Notes, and the E8eicured Notes were guaranteed by Parent ancoé&iDW LLC’s direct and
indirect, 100% owned, domestic subsidiaries (thaaf@ntor Subsidiaries”). All guarantees by Paredt@uarantor Subsidiaries are
and were joint and several, and full and uncondéipprovided that guarantees by the Guarantori8ialies (i) are subject to certe
customary release provisions contained in the inolea governing the 2022 Senior Notes, the 202888iotes and the 2024 Sen
Notes and (ii) were subject to certain customalgase provisions contained in the indentures gangrine 2019 Senior Notes, the
Senior Subordinated Notes and the Senior SecuréssNimtil such indentures were satisfied and diggthin 2014 and the first
quarter of 2015. CDW LLC's Canada subsidiary (tRer{-Guarantor Subsidiary”) does not guarantee &t dbligations. CDW

LLC and CDW Finance Corporation, as co-issuers,18% owned by Parent, and each of the Guarantmi@aries and the Non-
Guarantor Subsidiary is 100% owned by CDW LLC.

The following tables set forth condensed consadllidglbalance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and Deae®ih@014, consolidating
statements of operations for the three months eNtedh 31, 2015 and 2014 , condensed consolidatatgments of comprehensive
income for the three months ended March 31, 20852814 , and condensed consolidating statememtasbf flows for the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 , in accoedaitb Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X. The consolidgtfinancial information
includes the accounts of CDW Corporation (the “Baf&uarantor”), which has no independent assetgerations, the accounts of
CDW LLC (the “Subsidiary Issuer”), the combined agnts of the Guarantor Subsidiaries, the accourtteedNon-Guarantor
Subsidiary, and the accounts of CDW Finance Cotjmordthe “Co-Issuer”) for the periods indicatedhelinformation was prepared
on the same basis as the Company’s consolidataddial statements.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
March 31, 2015

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ — $ 428:% % — 5 29 $ — 3 (10.2) $ 447.¢
Accounts receivable, net — — 1,375.¢ 73.1 — — 1,448.¢
Merchandise inventory — — 352.¢ 4.€ — — 357.(
Miscellaneous receivables — 58.7 109.t 5.¢ — — 174.1
Prepaid expenses and other — 14.5 46.5 0.€ — 3.1 58.t
Total current assets — 501.t 1,884.: 113t — (13.9) 2,485.¢
Property and equipment, net — 81.5 52.¢ 1.C — — 135.1
Equity investments — 86.7 — — — — 86.7
Goodwill — 751.¢ 1,439.( 24.¢ — — 2,215.:
Other intangible assets, net — 314.7 809.t 4.€ — — 1,128.¢
Deferred financing costs, net — 34.2 — — — — 34.:2
Other assets 4.3 2.4 0.4 1.€ — (6.2) 2.€
Investment in and advances to
subsidiaries 971.2 2,770. — — — (3,741.9 —
Total assets $ 9755 $ 4543 $ 4,185¢ $ 1451 % — $ (3,761.0)0 $ 6,088.¢
Liabilities and Shareholders’
Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable—trade  $ — 8 222 % 648.8 $ 34€ $ — 3 (10.9 $ 695.1
Accounts payable—inventory
financing — — 289.¢ — — — 289.¢
Current maturities of
long-term debt — 15.4 — — — — 15.4
Deferred revenue — — 82.C 0.3 — — 82.2
Accrued expenses — 163.1 176.2 7.1 — (3.9 343.(
Total current liabilities — 200.¢ 1,196. 42.C — (13.7) 1,425.¢
Long-term liabilities:
Debt — 3,190.¢ — — — — 3,190.¢
Deferred income taxes — 136.€ 316.5 1.2 — 4.9 450.(
Other liabilities — 43.7 3.€ 0.t — (1.9 46.7
Total long-term liabilities — 3,371.: 320.1 2.C — (5.7 3,687.t
Total shareholders’ equity 975.k 971.2 2,669.: 101.1 — (3,741.9) 975.k
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity $ 9755 $ 4543 $ 4,185¢ $ 1451 $ — $ (3,761.) $ 6,088.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ — $ 346¢ $ — 9 24€ $ — 3 (26.5) $ 344.t
Accounts receivable, net — — 1,479.: 82.C — — 1,561.:
Merchandise inventory — — 333.¢ 3.6 — — 337.t
Miscellaneous receivables — 56.1 93.: 6.2 — — 155.¢
Prepaid expenses and other — 11.C 46.C iIE — (3.9 54.7
Total current assets — 413t 1,952.: 117.¢ — (30.9) 2,453
Property and equipment, net — 80.t 55.k 1.2 — — 137.2
Equity investments — 86.7 — — 86.7
Goodwill — 751.¢ 1,439.( 26.¢ — — 2,217.¢
Other intangible assets, net — 320.( 843.¢ 5.2 — — 1,168.¢
Deferred financing costs, net — 33.C — — — — 33.C
Other assets 4.3 3.2 04 1.4 — (6.2 3.2
Investment in and advances to
subsidiaries 932.C 2,784." — — — (3,716.) —
Total assets $ 936.L $ 44730 $ 42908 S 152t $ — $ (3,753.) $ 6,099
Liabilities and Shareholders’
Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable-trade $ — $ 23¢ % 671.¢ $ 347 $ — 3 (26.5) $ 704.(
Accounts payable-inventory
financing — — 332.] — — — 332.]
Current maturities of long-ter!
debt — 15.4 — — — — 15.4
Deferred revenue — — 79.¢ 1.4 — — 81.2
Accrued expenses — 137.¢ 193.¢ 7.¢ — (4.2 335.2
Total current liabilities — 177.1 1,277k 44.C — (30.¢) 1,468.(
Long-term liabilities:
Debt — 3,174.¢ — — — — 3,174.¢
Deferred income taxes — 146.5 331. & — 4.3 475.(
Other liabilities — 42.€ 3.7 1.C — (1.5) 45.¢
Total long-term liabilities — 3,363.¢ 335.( .3 — (5.9 3,695
Total shareholders’ equity 936.f 932. 2,678.: 106.2 — (3,716.) 936.t
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity $ 9365 $ 44731 $ 42908 $ 152t $ — $ (3,753.) $ 6,099
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Net sales $ — — $ 26276 $ 127 % — $ — $ 2,755.
Cost of sales — — 2,186.« 112.: — — 2,298.°
Gross profit — — 4412 15.c — — 456.%
Selling and administrative expenses — 28.c 238.t 8.7 — — 275.k
Advertising expense — — 28.7 0.7 — — 29.4
Income (loss) from operations — (28.9) 174.C 5.¢ — — 151.¢
Interest (expense) income, net — (44.9) — 0.1 — — (44.¢)
Net loss on extinguishments of long-

term debt — (24.9) — — — — (24.%)
Management fee — 1.0 — (2.0 — — —
Other income (expense), net — 41 0.7 (0.3 — — 4.t
Income (loss) before income taxes — (92.9 174.7 4.7 — — 87.C
Income tax benefit (expense) — 34.¢ (65.8) (1.3 — — (32.9)
Income (loss) before equity in

earnings of subsidiaries — (57.€) 108.¢ 3.4 — — 54.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 54.% 112.2 — — (167.0 —
Net income $ 547 547 $ 108.¢ $ 34 % — 3 (167.00 $ 54.%
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Net sales $ — 3 — $ 2518 % 1342 % — $ — $ 2,652
Cost of sales — — 2,107.t 119.€ — — 2,227.:
Gross profit — — 410.¢ 14.¢ — — 425.%
Selling and administrative expenses — 25.¢ 226.: 8.7 — — 260.¢
Advertising expense — — 27.¢ 0.7 — — 28.t
Income (loss) from operations — (25.9 156.5 5.2 — — 135.¢
Interest (expense) income, net — (50.2) — 0.1 — — (50.7)
Net loss on extinguishments of long-

term debt — (5.9 — — — — (5.9
Management fee — 1.0 — (2.0 — — —
Other (expense) income, net — — 0.4 0.1 — — 0.t
Income (loss) before income taxes — (80.5) 156.¢ 4.4 — — 80.¢
Income tax benefit (expense) — 30.2 (58.9) (1.2 — — (29.9)
Income (loss) before equity in

earnings of subsidiaries — (50.9) 98.C 3.2 — — 50.¢
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 50.¢ 101.2 — — — (152.7) —
Net income $ 50¢ $ 50.¢ $ 98.C $ 32 $ — 3 (152.0) $ 50.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensiviecome
Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated

Comprehensive income (loss) $ 437 $ 437 $ 108.¢ $ (7€) $ — 9 (145.00 $ 43.7
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensiviecome
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 47.C $ 47.C % 98.C $ (0.7 $ — 3 (1445 $ 47.C
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities $ — $ (200 $ 1752 $ 6.8 — % 16.5 $ 177.¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures — (8.7) (1.0 0.2 — — (10.0
Premium payments on interest
rate cap agreements — (0.5 — — — — (0.5)
Net cash used in investing activitie: — (9.2 (2.7 (0.2) — — (10.5)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt — (3.9 — — — — (3.9
Proceeds from the issuance of
long-term debt — 525.( — — — — 525.(
Payments to extinguish long-
term debt — (525.9) — — — — (525.9
Payments of debt financing costs — (6.9 — — — — (6.9
Net change in accounts payabl
inventory financing — — (42.9) — — — (42.9)
Proceeds from stock option
exercises — 0.t — — — — 0.t
Proceeds from Coworker Stocl
Purchase Plan — 1.7 — — — — 1.7
Dividends paid (11.9) — — — — — (11.9)
Excess tax benefits from equity
based compensation — 0.1 — — — — 0.1
Advances from (to) affiliates 11.7 120.¢ (131.9 (0.2 — — —
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities — 111.5 (174.2) (0.2 — — (62.7)
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents — — — (1.7 — — 2.7
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents — 81.¢ — 4.7 — 16.2 102.¢
Cash and cash equivalents—
beginning of period — 346.2 — 24.¢ — (26.5) 344t
Cash and cash equivalents—end @
period $ — 3 428.: $ — 3 29.5 — % (102 $ 447 ¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(in millions) Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiary Co-Issuer Adjustments Consolidated
Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities $ — 9 14: $ 207.C % 8€ $ — $ 164 $ 246.%
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures — (8.6) (0.7) — — — 9.3
Payment of accrued charitable
contribution related to the MPK
Coworker Incentive Plan Il — (20.9 — — — — (20.9
Net cash used in investing activitie: — (29.5) (0.79) — — — (30.2)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt — (3.9 — — — — (3.9
Payments to extinguish long-
term debt — (79.5) — — — — (79.5)
Net change in accounts payab
inventory financing — — (6.4) — — — (6.4)
Proceeds from stock option
exercises 0.1 — — — — — 0.1
Dividends paid (7.3 — — — — — (7.3
Advances from (to) affiliates 7.2 192.¢ (199.9 0.1 — — —
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities — 109.2 (206.9) 0.1 — — (97.0)
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents — — — (0.5 — — (0.5)
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents — 94.C — 8.2 — 16.4 118.€
Cash and cash equivalents—
beginning of period — 196.5 — 14.C — (22.9) 188.1
Cash and cash equivalents—end o )
period $ — % 290t % — 9 22z % — $ 6.0 $ 306.5
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9. Subsequent Event

On May 7, 2015, the Company announced that itsdBofDirectors has declared a quarterly cash diddaf $0.0675 per common
share to be paid on June 10, 2015 to all sharetsotderecord as of the close of business on May@&5. Future dividends will be
subject to Board approval.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

Unless otherwise indicated or the context othenrésgiires, as used in this “Management’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” the terms ;iwes,” “the Company,” “our,” “CDW” and similar te rms refer to CDW Corporation
and its subsidiaries. “Management’s Discussion &malysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyieems” should be read in
conjunction with the unaudited interim consolidafedncial statements and the related notes indiuelsewhere in this report and with the
audited consolidated financial statements incluthethe Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forykar ended December 31, 2014 .
This discussion contains forward-looking statemémas are subject to numerous risks and uncertagtActual results may differ materially
from those contained in any forwelooking statements. See “Forward-Looking Statesieat the end of this discussion.

Overview

CDW is a Fortune 500 company and a leading prowaflértegrated information technology (“IT”) solatis in the U.S. and Canada.
We help our customer base of approximately 2509008ll, medium and large business, government, ¢éiducand healthcare customers by
delivering critical solutions to their increasingigmplex IT needs. Our broad array of offeringggesnfrom discrete hardware and software
products to integrated IT solutions such as maghiiecurity, data center optimization, cloud conmjtvirtualization and collaboration. We
are technology “agnostic,” with a product portfali@t includes more than 100,000 products from rtfeeia 1,000 brands. We provide our
products and solutions through sales force andcgedelivery teams consisting of nearly 4,600 cdeos, including more than 1,800 field
sellers, highly-skilled technology specialists auyanced service delivery engineers.

We are a leading U.S. sales channel partner foyradginal equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) andtaafre publishers
(collectively, our “vendor partners”), whose protiiae sell or include in the solutions we offer. YWdieve we are an important extension of
our vendor partners' sales and marketing capasiliproviding them with a cost-effective way toaleaustomers and deliver a consistent
brand experience through our established end-madwerage and extensive customer access.

We have two reportable segments: Corporate, whicliinprised primarily of private sector businessta@mers, and Public, which is
comprised of government agencies and educatiomealthcare institutions. Our Corporate segmenivisled into a medium/large business
customer channel, primarily serving customers witire than 100 employees, and a small businessnsestthannel, primarily serving
customers with up to 100 employees. We also haee thther operating segments, CDW Advanced Serv@asada, and Kelway TopCo
Limited (“Kelway”), which do not meet the reportaldegment quantitative thresholds and, accordiagé/combined in an all other category
(“Other”). The CDW Advanced Services business csirgirimarily of customized engineering servicdssdeed by technology specialists
and engineers, and managed services that incldidestructure as a Service (“laaS”) offerings. Raxenfrom the sale of hardware, software,
custom configuration and third-party provided seegi are recorded within our Corporate and Pubfiomsaits.

We may sell all or only select products that ourdar partners offer. Each vendor partner agreem@nides for specific terms and
conditions, which may include one or more of théofeing: product return privileges, price protectipolicies, purchase discounts and ver
incentive programs, such as purchase or salesaebatl cooperative advertising reimbursements. [$éerasell software for major software
publishers. Our agreements with software publishbosv the end-user customer to acquire softwaleensed products and services. In
addition to helping our customers determine the efsware solutions for their needs, we help theamage their software agreements,
including warranties and renewals. A significanttipm of our advertising and marketing expensasgiimbursed through cooperative
advertising reimbursement programs with our venqdotners. These programs are at the discretionrofendor partners and are typically
tied to sales or purchasing volumes or other comanitts to be met by us within a specified periotimoé.

Trends and key factors affecting our financial perbrmance
We believe the following trends may have an impartapact on our financial performance:

» Our Public segment sales are impacted by govenhspending policies, budget priorities and reedeuels. An adverse change in
any of these factors could cause our Public segmestomers to reduce their purchases or to termimahot renew contracts with
which could adversely affect our business, resfltgperations or cash flows. Although our salethiofederal government are
diversified across multiple agencies and departmehey collectively accounted for approximately, 7% and 10% of our net sales
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l, 284pectively. Through the second quarter of 28Ldblic segment results
were impacted by the combined and negative effifcdequestration, the partial shutdown of the fabdgovernment and federal
government budget uncertainty in 2013. Howevem e finalization of federal budget allocationsarly 2014 we began to see
improvement in federal sales in the remainder df2n the first quarter of 2015 sales to federal
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customers increased year-over-year by double digits result of increased confidence as a fedadadi for 2015 is in place.

e An important factor affecting our ability to genate sales and achieve our targeted operatinjsésthe impact of general economic
conditions on our customers’ willingness to spendnformation technology. While macroeconomic utaiety drove a cautious
approach to customer spending in the early pa20&8, uncertainty began to dissipate in the batfoi2013 and continued to
dissipate throughout 2014. This trend began tawerge in the first quarter of 2015 as economic ghastowed. We will continue to
closely monitor macroeconomic conditions duringia@ainder of 2015. Uncertainties related to péaénhanges in tax and
regulatory policy, potential interest rate incregseeakening consumer and business confidence@ased unemployment could
result in reduced or deferred spending on inforamatechnology products and services by our custeued result in increased
competitive pricing pressures.

*  We believe that our customers’ transition to encomplex technology solutions will continue todmeimportant growth area for us in
the future. However, because the market for tedgyoproducts and services is highly competitive, success at capitalizing on tl
transition will be based on our ability to tailgregific solutions to customer needs, the quality lareadth of our product and service
offerings, the knowledge and expertise of our skdese, price, product availability and speed diviy. During the first quarter of
2015, we began to see a shift in customer prigridigay from last year's focus on client devicesatolw data center and integrated
solutions.

Key business metrics

Our management monitors a number of financial amdfmancial measures and ratios on a regular liagisder to track the
progress of our business and make adjustmentscassay. We believe that the most important ofetlmesasures and ratios include average
daily sales, gross margin, operating margin, nerime, Non-GAAP net income, net income per commamestiNon-GAAP net income per
diluted share, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, free kdbow, return on invested capital, cash and caghvalents, net working capital, cash
conversion cycle (defined to be days of sales antihg in accounts receivable plus days of supplgpventory minus days of purchases
outstanding in accounts payable, based on a ratiree-month average), debt levels including ab&laredit and leverage ratios, sales per
coworker and coworker turnover. These measuresatits are compared to standards or objectivelsysatanagement, so that actions can be
taken, as necessary, in order to achieve the s@smdad objectives.

Non-GAAP net income and Adjusted EBITDA are non-GAfinancial measures. We believe these measurgglprbelpful
information with respect to our operating perform@and cash flows including our ability to meet future debt service, capital expenditu
and working capital requirements. Adjusted EBITDsoaprovides helpful information as it is the primmaneasure used in certain key
covenants and definitions contained in the creglit@ement governing the Company’s Senior Securech Tean Facility (the “Term Loan”),
including the excess cash flow payment provisiba,restricted payment covenant and the net leveedpe These covenants and definitions
are material components of the Term Loan as theysed in determining the interest rate applicedtee Term Loan, the Company’s ability
to make certain investments, incur additional dabt| make restricted payments, such as dividerdislzare repurchases, as well as whether
the Company is required to make additional pringgpapayments on the Term Loan beyond the quarsergrtization payments. See Long-
Term Debt and Financing Arrangements within Managyg’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditand Results of Operations and
Note 4 to the accompanying unaudited interim cadatdd financial statements included elsewhergimreport for further details regardi
the Term Loan.

See “Results of Operations” for the definitiondNain-GAAP net income and Adjusted EBITDA and recéations to net income.
The results of certain of our key business metiesas follows:
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Three Months Ended March 31,

(dollars in millions) 2015 2014

Net sales $ 2,755.. $ 2,652.1
Gross profit 456.5 425.2
Income from operations 151.¢ 135.¢
Net income 54.7 50.¢
Non-GAAP net income 97.€ 81.1
Adjusted EBITDA 210.¢ 193.%
Average daily sales 43.7 42.1
Net debt (defined as total debt minus cash and eqsivalents) 2,758.¢ 2,865."
Cash conversion cycle (in day?3) 21 22
(1) Cash conversion cycle is defined as dayslessautstanding in accounts receivable plus daysipply in inventory minus days of

purchases outstanding in accounts payable, basadalling three-month average.
Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2015 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

The following table presents our results of operat] in dollars and as a percentage of net salet)d three months endsthrch 31
2015 and 2014 :

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Dollars in Percentage of Dollars in Percentage of

Millions Net Sales Millions Net Sales
Net sales $ 2,755.: 100.(% $ 2,652.: 100.C %
Cost of sales 2,298.° 83.4 2,227.. 84.C
Gross profit 456.5 16.€ 425.; 16.C
Selling and administrative expenses 275.t 10.C 260.¢ 9.8
Advertising expense 29.4 1.1 28.t 1.1
Income from operations 151.€ 5.5 135.¢ 5.1
Interest expense, net (44.¢) (1.6 (50.7) (1.9
Net loss on extinguishments of long-term debt (24.9) (0.9 (5.9 (0.2
Other income, net 4.5 0.2 0.t —
Income before income taxes 87.C 3.2 80.¢ 3.C
Income tax expense (32.9) (1.2 (29.9 (1.2
Net income $ 54.7 20% $ 50.¢ 1.€%

Net sales

The following table presents our net sales by segnire dollars and as a percentage of total nessahd the year-over-year dollar
and percentage change in net sales for the threghsvended March 31, 2015 and 2014 :

Three Months Ended March 31

2015 2014
Percentage

of Total Percentage Dollar Percent
(dollars in millions) Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales  of Total Net Sale Change Change”
Corporate $ 1,574.( 57.1% $ 1,505.¢ 56.7% $ 68.4 4.5%
Public 1,005.¢ 36.5 969.¢ 36.¢€ 35.¢ 3.7
Other 175. 6.4 176.¢ 6.7 (1.9 (0.8
Total net sales $ 2,755.; 100.(% $ 2,652. 100.(% $ 102.¢ 3.L£%

(1) There were 63 selling days for both the¢hmonths ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 .
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The following table presents our net sales by ecustachannel for our Corporate and Public segmerdsize year-over-year dollar
and percentage change in net sales for the threghsvended March 31, 2015 and 2014 .

Three Months Ended March 31,

Dollar Percent

(dollars in millions) 2015 2014 Change Change
Corporate:

Medium / Large $ 1,313¢ % 12746 $ 39.1 3.1%

Small Business 260.1 230.¢ 29.: 12.7

Total Corporate $ 1574 % 1,505t $ 68.4 4E%
Public:

Government $ 288.6 $ 254.; % 34.4 13.5%

Education 343.¢ 321.€ 22.C 6.8

Healthcare 373.¢ 394.1 (20.5) (5.2

Total Public $ 1,005.¢ $ 969.¢ $ 35.¢ 3.7%

Total net sales for the three months ended Mar¢l2@15 increased $102.9 million , or 3.9% , to $8,2 million , compared to
$2,652.3 million for the three months ended Marth2)14 . There were 63 selling days for both tinee¢ months ended March 31, 2015 and
2014 . Transitioning customer priorities drove mbaéanced growth between solutions-focused prodiretkiding netcomm and server-
related products, and transactional products. Granvhotebooks/mobile devices was partially oftsgt decline in desktop computers as the
customer refresh cycle slowed down during the ftsarter of 2015. A continued focus on seller patidity also contributed to the increast
total net sales.

Corporate segment net sales for the three monttededarch 31, 2015 increased $68.4 million , oP#l,<compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2014 , driven by sales drawboth customer channels. Within our Corporagnsent, net sales to medium/large
customers increased $39.1 million , or 3.1% , betwgeriods as customers shifted from last yeacedmn client devices toward data center
and other integrated solutions. This increase wiasm by growth in servers and server-related opticuch as memory. Growth in
notebooks/mobile devices was offset by a declindesktop computers. Net sales to small businegeroess increased by $29.3 million , or
12.7% , between periods, driven by growth in notddsémobile devices and netcomm products.

Public segment net sales for the three months eklidedh 31, 2015 increased $35.9 million , or 3.786étween periods, driven by
strong performance in government and educationaigroffset by a decline in healthcare. Net sategovernment customers increased $34.4
million , or 13.5%, between periods, driven by growth in sales tdbetleral and state/local government customergsSalfederal custome
increased year-over-year by double digits comptréhe sales declines in the prior year period wiederal government budget allocations
were impacted by residual negative effects of seimaton, the partial shutdown of the federal gameent and federal government budget
uncertainty in 2013. The increase in net salekeédederal government was led by growth in salesotébook/mobile devices. The increas
net sales to state/local government customersegblsyl growth in sales of notebooks/mobile devicebraetcomm products, partially offset
by declines in desktop computers. Net sales toa@hrccustomers increased $22.0 million , or 6.8%tween periods, led by strong growth
in net sales to higher education customers, prlyndtie to increased sales of notebooks/mobile ésvis well as software and netcomm
products to support the increase in demand forlegsenetworks. K-12 growth slowed during the firgarter of 2015 compared to the prior
year period as school districts shifted focus tmemn core testing and completing eRate funds agibics. Net sales to healthcare custor
decreased $20.5 million , or 5.2% , between perilsiien by a decline in desktop computer saleoatesof our larger customers shifted
priorities to reducing costs due to industry coitstlon.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased $31.3 million , or 7.4% $#56.5 million for the three months ended MarchZl5 , compared to $425.2
million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 a percentage of total net sales, gross prafitased 60 basis points to 16.6% for the
three months ended March 31, 2015, up from 16@%hk three months ended March 31, 20&4ross profit margin was positively
impacted 20 basis points by favorable price/mixngjes within product margin, primarily from notebsfkobile devices. Net service contt
revenue, including items such as third-party sejievarranties and Software as a Service (“Saafsityibuted a positive impact of 20 basis
points to gross profit margin as our cost paichevendor or thirgearty service provider is recorded as a reductiamet sales, resulting in r
sales being equal to the gross profit on the ti@timsa Further, gross profit margin was positivehpacted 10 basis points due to higher
revenues from advanced

27






Table of Contents

technology services as customer priorities movealyainom client devices and towards higher-margtedgnated solutions. The absence of
inventory adjustments recorded during the firstrtgreof 2014 also contributed a positive impact@fbasis points to gross profit margin
during the first quarter of 2015.

The gross profit margin may fluctuate based onowerifactors, including vendor incentive and invepfarice protection programs,
cooperative advertising funds classified as a rédinof cost of sales, product mix, net servicettat revenue, commission revenue, pricing
strategies, market conditions and other factors.

Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses increased $hdlion , or 5.6% , to $275.5 million for the tleenonths ended March 31, 2015,
compared to $260.9 million for the three monthseghillarch 31, 2014 . This increase was primarilyetriby sales payroll costs, including
sales commissions and other variable compensabists,ovhich increased $6.0 million, or 5.0%, betwgears, consistent with higher sales
and gross profit. In addition, the increase wasetdriby certain coworker costs which increased $#liéon, or 8.0%, during the quarter ended
March 31, 2015 compared to the prior year periog twthigher compensation consistent with increasedrker count. Total coworker count
was 7,254 , up 214 from 7,040 at March 31, 201dtallcoworker count was 7,211 at December 31, 2@sta percentage of total net sales,
selling and administrative expenses increased &3 ppaints to 10.0% in the first quarter of 201 from 9.8% in the first quarter of 2014 .
The increase in selling and administrative expeases percentage of sales was largely driven bgases in certain coworker costs and sales
payroll, as discussed above.

Advertising expens

Advertising expense increased $0.9 million , 088.00 $29.4 million for the three months ended &fta81, 2015 , compared to
$28.5 million for the prior year period. As a pertage of total net sales, advertising expense redaionsistent at 1.1% for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 . The dollar incremadvertising expense was primarily due to aioomd focus on promoting our
reputation as a leading IT solutions provider.

Income from operation

The following table presents income from operatiopsegment, in dollars and as a percentage cfates, and the year-over-year
percentage change in income from operations fothte®® months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 :

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Operating Operating Percent Change
Dollars in Margin Dollars in Margin in Income (loss)
Millions Percentage Millions Percentage from Operations
Segments®
Corporate $ 110.Z 7% $ 101.1 6.7% 9.C%
Public 59.€ 5.¢ 54.1 5.€ 10.2
Other 10.1 5.€ 6.5 3.7 55.4
Headquarter® (28.9) nm* (25.9 nm* 9.4
Total income from operations $ 151.¢ 55% $ 135.¢ 5.1% 11.7%
* Not meaningful
(1) Segment income from operations includes tigenemt’s direct operating income and allocationsHeadquarters’ costs, allocations

for logistics services, certain inventory adjustmseand volume rebates and cooperative advertisorg ¥endors.
(2) Includes certain Headquartefighction costs that are not allocated to the sed¢s

Income from operations was $151.6 million for theee months ended March 31, 2015, an increas&5o83$nillion , or 11.7% ,
compared to $135.8 million for the three monthseghillarch 31, 2014 . This increase was driven bidrigiet sales and gross profit. Total
operating margin percentage increased 40 basisspois.5% for the three months ended March 31520f%om 5.1% for the three months
ended March 31, 2014 . Operating margin percentagepositively impacted by the increase in groséifamargin which was partially offset
by the increase in selling and administrative egpsras a percentage of net sales.
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Corporate segment income from operations was $1h0lidn for the three months ended March 31, 2048 increase of $9.1
million , or 9.0% , compared to $101.1 million the three months ended March 31, 2014 . This iser@as driven by higher net sales and
gross profit. Corporate segment operating margingrgage increased 30 basis points to 7.0% fothttee months ended March 31, 2015,
from 6.7% for the three months ended March 31, 20@gerating margin percentage was positively irtgzhby the increase in gross profit
margin which was partially offset by the increasseélling and administrative expenses as a pergemtanet sales.

Public segment income from operations was $59.6omifor the three months ended March 31, 2015inarease of $5.5 millionor
10.2% , compared to $54.1 million for the three therended March 31, 2014 . This increase was dhiydmngher net sales and gross profit.
Public segment operating margin percentage incde2@éasis points to 5.9 % for the three monthedndarch 31, 2015 , from 5.6% for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 . Operating magjicentage was positively impacted by the iner@agross profit margin and by the
decrease in selling and administrative expensaspgscentage of net sales.

Interest expense, n

At March 31, 2015, our outstanding long-term dekdled $3,206.2 million compared to $3,172.4 willat March 31, 2014 . Net
interest expense for the three months ended MdrcBML5 was $44.8 million , a decrease of $5.3i@niltompared to $50.1 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 . This decreasevimarily due to lower effective interest raassof March 31, 2015 compared to
March 31, 2014 as a result of redemptions andaefimg activities completed during 2014 and theg¢hmonths ended March 31, 2015.

Net loss on extinguishments of I-term debt

During the three months ended March 31, 2015 ,aserded a net loss on extinguishment of long-tesiyt df $24.3 million
compared to $5.4 million for the same period in£201

In March 2015, we redeemed all of the remaining3$8nillion aggregate principal amount of the 2019 Senior Nwésrecorded
loss on extinguishment of debt of $24.3 milliorttie consolidated statement of operations for theetimonths ended March 31, 2015,
representing the difference between the redemptime and the net carrying amount of the purchaedd, adjusted for the remaining
unamortized deferred financing costs and premium.

In January and February 2014, we redeemed $50li@mélggregate principal amount of senior subordidanotes. We recorded a
loss on extinguishment of lortgrm debt of $2.7 million, representing the diffeze between the redemption price and the net carainoun
of the repurchased debt, adjusted for a portiah@iunamortized deferred financing costs.

In March 2014, we repurchased $25.0 million aggiegaincipal amount of senior notes. We record&sba on extinguishment of
long-term debt of $2.7 million, representing thBetence between the repurchase price and theanstig amount of the repurchased debt,
adjusted for a portion of the unamortized defefeaincing costs.

Income tax expen:

Income tax expense was $32.3 million for the thmemths ended March 31, 2015 , compared to $2918mibr the same period of
the prior year. The effective income tax rate, egped by calculating the income tax expense ascamage of income before income taxes,
was 37.1% for the three months ended March 31, 20tbBpared to 37.0% for the same period of theryear and differed in both periods
from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily daestate and local income taxes.

Net income

Net income was $54.7 million for the three monthdedd March 31, 2015 , compared to $50.9 milliontfierthree months ended
March 31, 2014 . Significant factors and eventsstaythe net changes between the periods are detadbove.

Nor-GAAP net income

Non-GAAP net income was $97.6 million for the threenths ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $hdlibn , or 20.3% ,
compared to $81.1 million for the three months ehidarch 31, 2014 .
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We have included a reconciliation of Non-GAAP metdme for the three months ended March 31, 2012644 below. NorsAAP
net income excludes, among other things, chardaetedeto the amortization of acquisition-relatethigibles, non-cash equity-based
compensation and gains and losses from the eatitygeishment of debt. Non-GAAP net income is coasidl a non-GAAP financial
measure. Generally, a non-GAAP financial measugenismerical measure of a company's performantandial position, or cash flows that
either excludes or includes amounts that are nohally included or excluded in the most directiyqmarable measure calculated and
presented in accordance with GAAP. Non-GAAP measused by the Company may differ from similar measwsed by other companies,
even when similar terms are used to identify suelsuares. We believe that Non-GAAP net income pes/teelpful information with respect
to our operating performance and cash flows indgdiur ability to meet our future debt service,i@@xpenditures and working capital
requirements.

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014

Net income $ 547 $ 50.¢
Amortization of intangibles? 40.: 40.2
Non-cash equity-based compensation 4.7 3.3
Net loss on extinguishments of long-term debt 24.% 5.4
Interest expense adjustment related to extinguisksr# long-term dels?) — (0.6)
Secondary-offering-related expenses — 0.4
Other adjustment® 0.€ —
Aggregate adjustment for income ta%es (27.9) (18.6)

Non-GAAP net income $ 97.¢ $ 81.1

(1) Includes amortization expense for acquisitiel&ted intangible assets, primarily customer i@hships and trade nam

(2) Reflects adjustments to interest expensetiegutom debt extinguishments. Represents thediffce between interest expense
previously recognized under the effective interesthod and actual interest paid.

(3) Primarily includes expenses related to the conatiid of our headquarters and sales locations mér@hicagc

(4) Based on a normalized effective tax rate of 3¢
Adjusted EBITD/

Adjusted EBITDA was $210.8 million for the three mtlos ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $17libmj or 8.8% , compared
to $193.7 million for the three months ended M&8&h2014 . As a percentage of net sales, AdjusBi@IBA was 7.7% for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 compared to 7.3% for the threeths ended March 31, 2014 .

We have included reconciliations of EBITDA and Astied EBITDA for the three months ended March 31,528nd 2014 in the
tables below. EBITDA is defined as consolidatedinebme before interest expense, income tax expeepeeciation and amortization.
Adjusted EBITDA, which is a measure defined in orgdit agreements, means EBITDA adjusted for aeitams which are described in the
table below. Both EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA arensidered non-GAAP financial measures. GeneralhQraGAAP financial measure
a numerical measure of a company's performancandial position or cash flows that either excludescludes amounts that are not
normally included or excluded in the most direathmparable measure calculated and presented indacm® with GAAP. Non-GAAP
measures used by the Company may differ from similzasures used by other companies, even wherasi@ims are used to identify such
measures.

We believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provitlelpful information with respect to our operatirgrformance and cash
flows including our ability to meet our future dedgrvice, capital expenditures and working capéglirements. Adjusted EBITDA is also
primary measure used in certain key covenants efiditions contained in the credit agreement goweythe Company’s Term Loan,
including the excess cash flow payment provisiba,restricted payment covenant and the net leverdiye These covenants and definitions
are material components of the Term Loan as theyised in determining the interest rate appliceibtbe Term Loan, the Company’s ability
to make certain investments, incur additional dabtl make restricted payments, such as dividerdistzare repurchases, as well as whether
the Company is required to make additional pringgwepayments on the Term Loan beyond the quarterigrtization payments. See
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Note 4 to the accompanying unaudited interim cadatdd financial statements included elsewheraigreport for further details regardi
the Term Loan.

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014

Net income $ 547 $ 50.¢
Depreciation and amortization 52.t 52.C
Income tax expense 32.: 29.€
Interest expense, net 44.¢ 50.1
EBITDA 184.: 182.¢

Adjustments:

Non-cash equity-based compensation 4.7 &
Net loss on extinguishments of long-term debt 24.% 5.4
Income from equity investments (4.5 0.3
Litigation, net® — (0.9
Secondary-offering-related expenses — 0.4
Other adjustment® 2.C 2
Total adjustments 26.t 10.€
Adjusted EBITDA $ 210.¢ ¢ 193.7

(1) Relates to unusual, neeeurring litigation matter

(2) Other adjustments primarily include certain higtakiretention costs and expenses related to theotidation of our headquarters ¢
sales locations north of Chicago.

Seasonality

While we have not historically experienced sigrafic seasonality throughout the year, sales in aup@ate segment, which
primarily serves private sector business custonagestypically higher in the fourth quarter tharother quarters due to customers spending
their remaining technology budget dollars at the efithe year. Additionally, sales in our Publigsent have historically been higher in the
third quarter than in other quarters primarily do¢he buying patterns of the federal governmedteducation customers.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

We finance our operations and capital expendittimesigh a combination of internally generated dasim operations and from
borrowings under our senior secured afseted revolving credit facility. We believe that aurrent sources of funds will be sufficient tondl
our cash operating requirements for the next yaaddition, we believe that we have adequate ssunt liquidity and funding available to
meet our longer-term needs. However, there arerdauof factors that may negatively impact our Edé sources of funds. The amount of
cash generated from operations will be dependemn €gctors such as the successful execution obasiness plan and general economic
conditions.

On May 7, 2015, the Company announced that itsdBofDirectors has declared a quarterly cash diddaf $0.0675 per common
share to be paid on June 10, 2015 to all sharetsotdeecord as of the close of business on May@&5. Future dividends will be subject to
Board approval.
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Cash Flows
Cash flows from operating, investing and financangvities were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 1776 $ 246.:

Investing activities (10.5) (30.2)

Net change in accounts payable-inventory fiam (42.9) (6.9

Other cash flows from financing activities (20.9 (90.6)

Financing activities (62.7) (97.0

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatmnts (1.7) (0.5

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 102.¢ % 118.¢

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for theeé months ended March 31, 2015 decreased $6Bidgnnsbompared to the same
period of the prior year. Net income adjusted Far impact of non-cash items such as depreciatidragmortization, equity-based
compensation expense, deferred income taxes, dtosseon extinguishments of long-term debt incedes21.3 million , reflecting stronger
operating results and lower interest expense ifitbiethree months of 2015 compared to the prearnyperiod. Net changes in assets and
liabilities increased cash by $65.4 million in fivet three months of 2015 compared to $155.2 aoilin the first three months of 2014,
resulting in a change of $89.8 million between @asi During the three months ended March 31, 2@&5h inflows from other current
liabilities decreased $43.3 million compared toshene period of the prior year primarily due tcealthe in accrued interest related to our
redemption of the 2019 Senior Notes in March 20d%addition, during the three months ended March2®15, changes in accounts payable-
trade decreased cash by $28.5 million year-over{yemarily due to the timing of certain vendor pasnts in the first quarter of 2015
compared to the same period of 2014.

In order to manage our working capital and opegatiash needs, we monitor our cash conversion cglefened as days of sales
outstanding in accounts receivable plus days gblgup inventory minus days of purchases outstagdtinaccounts payable, based on a
rolling three-month average.

The following table presents the components ofaaish conversion cycle:

March 31,
(in days) 2015 2014
Days of sales outstanding (DS®) 45 44
Days of supply in inventory (DIGY 13 14
Days of purchases outstanding (DFD) (37) (36)
Cash conversion cycle 21 22
(1) Represents the rolling three-month averageebalance of trade accounts receivable, neeagnid of the period divided by average

daily net sales for the same three-month periogo Aicorporates components of other miscellanesesivables.

(2) Represents the rolling three-month average@balance of inventory at the end of the periotidd by average daily cost of sales
for the same three-month period.

3) Represents the rolling three-month averageetombined balance of accounts payable-tradéydirg cash overdrafts, and
accounts payable-inventory financing at the enthefperiod divided by average daily cost of sategtie same three-month period.

The cash conversion cycle decreased to 21 daysuatiVB1, 201Bompared to 22 days at March 31, 2014. The increaB&0 was primaril
driven by an increase in net sales and receivdbitdhird-party services such as software assurandewarranties. These services have an
unfavorable impact on DSO as the receivable isgeieed on the balance sheet on a gross basis thkileorresponding sales amount in the
statement of operations is recorded on a net bEs&sincrease in DPO was
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primarily due to an increase in payables for thoedty services, which offsets the related incréa$2SO discussed above. These services
have a favorable impact on DPO as the payable@grezed on the balance sheet without a correspgradist of sales in the statement of
operations because the cost paid to the venddirdrparty service provider is recorded as a redadb net sales. An increase in purchases
from vendors with longer payment terms also haavarable impact on DPO at March 31, 2015. The @serén DIO was primarily due to a
lower inventory balance at March 31, 2015 as coegbéw March 31, 2014 as a result of lower salestiraluring 2015 compared to 2014.

Investing Activitie:

Net cash used in investing activities decreased/didllion in the three months ended March 31, 26d%pared to the same period
of the prior year. The decrease was primarily duiin¢ payment of an accrued charitable contributiiarng the first quarter of 2014 that did
not occur in 2015. In connection with a 2007 bustneombination, we agreed with a significant sglBhareholder to establish the MPK
Coworker Incentive Plan Il (the “MPK Plan”) andritake charitable contributions in amounts equathéortet income tax benefits derived
from payouts to participants under the MPK Plart ieany related employer payroll tax costs). Immection with the completion of our IPO
in July 2013, we accrued $20.9 million relatedhis firrangement in other current liabilities. Thadility was fully settled in cash during the
first quarter of 2014. There is no remaining atyivinder the MPK plan.

Capital expenditures were $10.0 million and $9.8Biomi for the three months ended March 31, 20152014 , respectively,
primarily for improvements to our information tedbogy systems during both periods.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities decreased3@llion in the three months ended March 31, 26dfpared to the same period
of the prior year. The decrease was primarily drilsg the net impact of our debt transactions whegulted in cash outflows of $7.2 million
and $79.5 million during the three months endeddd&1, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. During theghmonths ended March 31, 2015, we
completed the issuance of $525.0 million of 2028i&eNotes, which partially offset the cash usedeiuce our total long-term debt. See
Note 4 to the accompanying unaudited interim cadatdd financial statements included elsewheraigreport for a description of the d¢
transactions impacting each period. This decreasepartially offset by the changes in accounts lpiayaventory financing which resulted
an increase in cash used for financing activitfes3%.9 million . The decrease in accounts payablentory financing was primarily due to
higher purchase volumes from certain vendors dubiegember 2014 to support the overall increaseirsales during that month, which w
paid during the first quarter of 2015.

Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements

As of March 31, 2015 , we had total indebtednesg3a? billion , of which $1.5 billion was securediebtedness. At March 31,
2015 , we were in compliance with the covenantsuiodr various credit agreements and indenturedakth 31, 2015, the amount of
CDW's restricted payment capacity under the SeBemured Term Loan Facility was $ 765.9 million .

Note 7 to the consolidated financial statementsainad in the December 31, 2014 financial statemeriudes additional details
regarding our debt. See Note 4 to the accompanyiagdited interim consolidated financial statemémtkided elsewhere in this report for
further details regarding each of the current gketiansactions described below.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015,dhewing events occurred with respect to our deftcsure:

* On March 3, 2015, we completed the issuanc&ab$ million principal amount of 5.0% Senior Notkge 2023 which will
mature on September 1, 2023.

* On March 3, 2015, we redeemed the remaining $5@8@lion aggregate principal amount of the 8.5&ni®r Notes due 2019,
plus accrued and unpaid interest through the datedemption, April 2, 2015.

Inventory Financing Agreements

We have entered into agreements with certain filshintermediaries to facilitate the purchase afintory from various suppliers
under certain terms and conditions. These amouatslassified separately as accounts payable-iowefinancing on the consolidated
balance sheets. We do not incur any interest expassociated with these agreements as balancpaidnehen they are due. See Note 3 to
the accompanying unaudited consolidated finantééments included elsewhere in this report fothier details.
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Contractual Obligations

Other than as discussed above in “Long-Term DethtFamancing Arrangements,” there have been no aatdranges to our
contractual obligations from those reported in Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwem31, 2014.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements thatdraa@ reasonably likely to have a material curogruture effect on our
financial condition, changes in financial conditioevenues or expenses, results of operationsditgucapital expenditures or capital
resources.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various legal proceedings thaearnighe ordinary course of our business, whickuihe commercial, intellectual
property, employment, tort and other litigation taeg. We are also subject to audit by federalestatl local authorities, by various partners,
group purchasing organizations and customers, dingdugovernment agencies, relating to purchasesaled under various contracts. In
addition, we are subject to indemnification claiamgler various contracts. From time to time, certdiour customers file voluntary petitions
for reorganization or liquidation under the U.Snkauptcy laws. In such cases, certain pre-petitiapments received by us could be
considered preference items and subject to retutimet bankruptcy administrator.

As of March 31, 2015 , we do not believe that thier@ reasonable possibility that any material Baseding the amounts already
recognized for these proceedings and mattersyiftaas been incurred. However, the ultimate re&wiatof these proceedings and matters are
inherently unpredictable. As such, our financiatdition and results of operations could be advgra#fected in any particular period by the
unfavorable resolution of one or more of these @edings or matters.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies have not changeunfthose reported in Item 7 “Management’s Disaussind Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in our AnnBajport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRB14 .

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The information set forth in Note 2 to the accompag unaudited consolidated financial statementtuted in Part I, Item 1 of this
Form 10-Q is incorporated herein by reference.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forwardoking statements within the meaning of the felseaurities laws. All statements other than statets
of historical fact included in this report are f@am-looking statements. These statements relapatyses and other information, which are
based on forecasts of future results and estinodt@mounts not yet determinable. These statemésug@ate to our future prospects,
developments and business strategies. We claimprttiection of The Private Securities Litigation Baf Act of 1995 for all forward-looking
statements in this report.

These forward-looking statements are identifiedH®yuse of terms and phrases such as “anticip&ieljeve,” “could,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “predict,” “progct,” “will” and similar terms and phrases, inclodireferences to assumptions. However,
these words are not the exclusive means of idémgjffgyuch statements. Although we believe that ¢tamg intentions and expectations
reflected in or suggested by such forward-lookitagesnents are reasonable, we cannot assure yowehaill achieve those plans, intentions
or expectations. All forward-looking statements suibject to risks and uncertainties that may cacsigal results to differ materially from

those that we expected.

” ” o ” w ”ou ” o

Important factors that could cause actual resaltfiffer materially from our expectations, or camtary statements, are disclosed
under the section entitled “Risk Factors” includie@ur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year esh@&cember 31, 2014 . All written and
oral forward-looking statements attributable toarspersons acting on our behalf, are expressliifaqathin their entirety by the cautionary
statements contained in the section entitled “Ris&tors” included elsewhere in this report as wselbther cautionary statements that are
made from time to time in our other SEC filings gmublic communications. You should evaluate alWard-looking statements made in this
report in the context of these risks and unceritsnt
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We caution you that the important factors referdrmeove may not contain all of the factors thatiemgortant to you. In addition, v
cannot assure you that we will realize the resulidevelopments we expect or anticipate or, evenbitantially realized, that they will result
in the consequences or affect us or our operatiotiee way we expect. The forward-looking stateraémt¢luded in this report are made only
as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligatquublicly update or revise any forward-lookingtstaent as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, except as otherwiseired by law.
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ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firei@ondition and Results of Operations” and “Qitative and Qualitative
Disclosures of Market Risks” in the Company’s AnhRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemiie814 . As of March 31, 2015,
there had been no material change in this infonati

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company's management, with the participatiah@Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdricial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disodocontrols and procedures (as such term isetefinRule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as astk(ttie “Exchange Act”)as of the end of the period covered by this refgased on suc
evaluation, the Company's management, includin@tmapany's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah©fficer, has concluded that, as
of the end of such period, the Company's disclosardrols and procedures were effective in recardimocessing, summarizing and
reporting, on a timely basis, information requitede disclosed by the Company in the reportsittiges or submits under the Exchange #
and that information is accumulated and communitaighe Company's management, including the Cogip&hief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allomdly discussions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in the Company’s internarabover financial reporting during the quarteded March 31, 2015 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See Note 6 “Commitments and Contingencies” to toempanying unaudited interim consolidated finanstiatements.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

See “Risk Factors” in the Company's Annual ReporForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2084ofAMarch 31, 2015,
there had been no material change in this infonati

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds
None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Description

3.1* Amended and Restated By-Laws of CDW Finance Cotjmora

4.1 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 3, 26yt&nd among CDW LLC, CDW Finance Corporation,dharantors party
thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, agéeigreviously filed as Exhibit 4.2 with CDW Corption’s Form 8-K filed
on March 3, 2015 and incorporated herein by refegen

4.2 Form of 5.00% Senior Note (included as Exhibit Atxhibit 4.1), previously filed as Exhibit 4.3 wittlDW Corporation’s
Form 8-K filed on March 3, 2015 and incorporatedelire by reference.

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer PursuantRule 15d-14(a) under the Securities ExchangeoAt834.

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer PursuantRule 15d-14(a) under the Securities ExchangeoAt934.

32.1** Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. 1350.

32.2%* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. 1350.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docute

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

101.LAB*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

* Filed herewitl

* These items are furnished and not fi
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréiport to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

CDW CORPORATION

Date: May 8, 2015 By:  /s/ Ann E. Ziegler
Ann E. Ziegler
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Duly authorized officer, principal financial offic and
principal accounting officer)
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Exhibit 3.1
AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS
OF

CDW FINANCE CORPORATION
A Delaware corporation

(Adopted as of March 4, 2015)

ARTICLE |
OFFICES
Section 1. Reaqistered Office The registered office of the corporation in that& of Delaware shall
located at Delaware is 2711 Centerville Road, St0@ in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castll9808. Th
name of its registered agent at such address igo€aion Service Company. The registered office/@nkgistere
agent of the corporation may be changed from tmterie by action of the board of directors.

Section 2. Other Offices. The corporation may also have offices at suclerofilaces, both within a
without the State of Delaware, as the board ofctirs may from time to time determine or the bussnef th
corporation may require.

ARTICLE Il
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 1. Annual Meetings The annual meeting of the stockholders shall édd ht a time fixed by tt
directors. In the event that the annual meetingpisheld at the time fixed in accordance with thBgkws or the tim
for an annual meeting is not so fixed to be helthiwithirteen (13) months after the last annual tingewas held,
special meeting in lieu of the annual meeting mayheld with all of the effect of an annual meetifige purposes fi
which the annual meeting is to be held, in additmnhose prescribed by the certificate of incogbion, shall be fc
electing directors and for such other purposesha#i be specified in the notice for the meetingd amly busines
within such purposes may be conducted at the ngeetin

Section 2. Special Meetings Special meetings of stockholders may be calleéfy purpose. Such meetil
may be called at any time by the board of direcémrd shall be called by the secretary, or in tlse cd death, absen
incapacity or refusal of the secretary, by any otf#cer if the holders of at least ten percenabithe votes entitled
be cast on any issue to be considered at the prdEpecial meeting sign, date and deliver to theetay one or mo
written demands for the meeting describing the psegfor which it is to be held. Only business witthie purpose
purposes specified in the notice for the meeting beaconducted at a special shareholders' meeting.

Section 3. Place of Meetings The board of directors may designate any plateerewithin or without th
State of Delaware, as the place of meeting foraamual meeting or for any




special meeting or the board of directors may mlewhat any annual meeting or any special meetwad) be hel
solely by means of remote communication in accardamith Section 12 of this Article II. If no desigon is mad
with respect to the location of any annual meetimgspecial meeting, the place of meeting shall Hee drincipa
executive office of the corporation.

Section 4. Notice; Waiver of Notice Whenever stockholders are required or permittethke action at
meeting, written or printed notice stating the pladate, time, and, in the case of special meetithgspurpose
purposes, of such meeting, shall be given to etdkisolder entitled to vote at such meeting nas kesn ten (10) n
more than sixty (60) days before the date of thetmg. All such notices shall be delivered, eitpersonally or b
mail, by or at the direction of the board of dist(or such officers as the board of directorsgieges) and if maile
such notice shall be deemed to be delivered whpaosited in the United States mail, postage preaidressed to t
stockholder at his, her or its address as the sgppears on the records of the corporation. WheneoBce of
meeting is required to be given to a stockholdeddwy, the certificate of incorporation or thesedws, a writte
waiver thereof, executed before or after the mgdinsuch stockholder and filed with the recordthef meeting, sh
be deemed equivalent to such notice. Attendanca @krson at a meeting (including via means of elaa
communication) shall constitute a waiver of (1)io®tof such meeting, except when the person attemdbe expres
purpose of objecting at the beginning of the megetm the transaction of any business because tledingeis no
lawfully called or convened and (2) objection tasleration of a particular matter at the meetirag ts not within th
purpose or purposes described in the meeting natidess the shareholder objects to consideringnidiger when it |
presented.

Section 5. Stockholders List The officer having charge of the stock ledgethaf corporation shall make,
least ten (10) days before every meeting of theksimlders, a complete list of the stockholderstlentito vote at suc
meeting arranged in alphabetical order, showingattdress of each stockholder and the number oéshagistered
the name of each stockholder. Such list shall dp the examination of any stockholder, for angppse germat
to the meeting, during ordinary business hoursaf@eriod of at least ten (10) days prior to thesting, either at
place within the city where the meeting is to b&lhehich place shall be specified in the noticalef meeting or,
not so specified, at the place where the meetirig i held. The list shall also be produced amt kethe time ar
place of the meeting during the whole time theraaf] may be inspected by any stockholder who iseprte

Section 6. Quorum. The holders of a majority of the outstanding skaof capital stock, present in perso
represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorurallaineetings of the stockholders, except as otrsswirovided b
statute or by the certificate of incorporationalfjluorum is not present, the holders of a majofityre shares present
person or represented by proxy at the meetingeatitled to vote at the meeting, may adjourn theting to anothe
time and/or place.

Section 7. Adjourned Meetings When a meeting is adjourned to another time dackp notice need not
given of the adjourned meeting if the time and @ldeereof are announced at the meeting at whichdfwmirnment i
taken. At the adjourned meeting the corporation mmagsact any business which might have been tréatat th
original meeting. If the adjournment




is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after tadjournment a new record date is fixed for the @ajed meeting,
notice of the adjourned meeting shall be giveraithestockholder of record entitled to vote at theetimg.

Section 8. Vote Required When a quorum is present, the affirmative votéthefmajority of shares presen
person or represented by proxy at the meeting antitleel to vote on the subject matter shall be #oé of the
stockholders, unless the question is one upon wiycbxpress provisions of an applicable law orhef tertificate ¢
incorporation a different vote is required andthe case of applicable law, cannot be supersedeabtdse bylaws
the certificate of incorporation, in which case Iswxpress provision shall govern and control theisiten of suc
guestion.

Section 9. Voting Rights. Except as otherwise provided by the General Gatmm Law of the State
Delaware or by the certificate of incorporationtieé corporation or any amendments thereto and stutgjeSection
of Article VI hereof, every stockholder shall ateey meeting of the stockholders be entitled to @)evote in persc
or by proxy for each share of common stock helgdumgh stockholder.

Section 10. Proxies. Each stockholder entitled to vote at a meetingtotkholders or to express conset
dissent to corporate action in writing without aetieg may authorize another person or personsttéoadim or he
by proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or actpdn after three (3) years from its date, unlbssptroxy provide
for a longer period. A duly executed proxy shallitvevocable if it states that it is irrevocabledaf and only as lor
as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient invléo support an irrevocable power. A proxy may bedmirrevocab
regardless of whether the interest with which itc@ipled is an interest in the stock itself or ateriest in th
corporation generally. Any proxy is suspended wlhiem person executing the proxy is present at a ingeet
stockholders and elects to vote, except that wiieh proxy is coupled with an interest and the fafcthe interes
appears on the face of the proxy, the agent naméuki proxy shall have all voting and other rigtgtferred to in th
proxy, notwithstanding the presence of the pers@tging the proxy. At each meeting of the stocdlkd, and befo
any voting commences, all proxies filed at or befthre meeting shall be submitted to and examinetidgecretary
a person designated by the secretary, and no simag®e represented or voted under a proxy thabéas found t
be invalid or irregular.

Section 11. Action by Written Consent Unless otherwise provided in the certificate rdarporation, ar
action required to be taken at any annual or spewgeting of stockholders of the corporation, oy action whicl
may be taken at any annual or special meeatinguch stockholders, may be taken without a mgetiwithout prio
notice and without a vote, if a consent or consantsriting, setting forth the action so taken aehring the dates
signature of the stockholders who signed the cdnsienonsents, shall be signed by the holders tdtanding stoc
having not less than the minimum number of voted thould be necessary to authorize or take sudbraet ¢
meeting at which all shares entitled to vote ther@ere present and voted and shall be deliverddet@orporation
delivery to its registered office in the state al&®wvare, or the corporatianprincipal place of business, or an office
agent of the corporation having custody of the bookooks in which proceedings of meetings of tieekholders at
recorded. Delivery made to the corporation’s reged office shall be by hand or by certified orisegyed mail, return




receipt requested; provided, however, that no aunse consents delivered by certified or registeneall shall b
deemed delivered until such consent or consentactally received at the registered office. Alhsents proper
delivered in accordance with this section shallbemed to be recorded when so delivered. No writbesent shall
effective to take the corporate action referredhterein unless, within sixty (60) days of the esstlidated conse
delivered to the corporation as required by thetise, written consents signed by the holders sdifficient number ¢
shares to take such corporate action are so restoRtempt notice of the taking of the corporatdoacivithout ¢
meeting by less than unanimous written consentl &®lgiven to those stockholders who have not aueseir
writing. Any action taken pursuant to such writeonsent or consents of the stockholders shall Haveame forc
and effect as if taken by the stockholders at atimg¢hereof.

Section 12. Meetings by Remote Communication Unless otherwise provided in the certificate
incorporation, if authorized by the board of dicest any annual or special meeting of stockholdeesd not be held
any place but may instead be held solely by me&angmote communication, and subject to such guigslian
procedures as the board of directors may adoptkistdders and proxyholders not physically preséra meeting ¢
the stockholders may, by means of remote commuaoitat(1) participate in a meeting of the stockleosd and (2) k
deemed present in person and vote at a meetingedatockholders whether such meeting is to be dtetddesignate
place or solely by means of remote communicatioonyided that: (i) the corporation shall implemeertgonabl
measures to verify that each person deemed presehtpermitted to vote at the meeting by means ofote
communication is a stockholder or proxyholder; {fi¢ corporation shall implement reasonable measiarg@rovid:
such stockholders and proxyholders a reasonablertymity to participate in the meeting and to vote matter
submitted to the stockholders, including an opputyuto read or hear the proceedings of the meedurgstantiall
concurrently with such proceedings; and (iii) ifyastockholder or proxyholder votes or takes othefoa at th
meeting by means of remote communication, a readrduch vote or other action shall be maintainedtls
corporation.

Section 13. Form of Stockholder Action Any vote, consent, waiver, proxy appointment treo action by
stockholder or by the proxy or other agent of aglsholder shall be considered given in writingtedband signed,
in lieu of any other means permitted by law, it gists of an electronic transmission that sets fortts delivered wit
information from which the corporation can deterenifi) that the electronic transmission was transaitoy thi
stockholder, proxy or agent or by a person autledrito act for the stockholder, proxy or agent; éndhe date o
which such stockholder, proxy, agent or authorigetson transmitted the electronic transmission. ddte on whic
the electronic transmission is transmitted shalttesidered to be the date on which it was signediged the vote
consent, waiver, proxy appointment or other actimay provide that it is effective as of another ddiee electroni
transmission shall be considered received by theotation if it has been sent to any address gSpeciby the
corporation for the purpose or, if no address hleentspecified, to the principal office of the cogimn, addressed
the secretary or other officer or agent having aastof the records of proceedings of stockholdéusy copy
facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a vatensent, waiver, proxy appointment or other achigra stockhold¢
or by the proxy or other agent of any stockholdayne substituted or used in




lieu of the original writing for any purpose for ieh the original writing could be used, but the gojacsimile or othe
reproduction shall be a complete reproduction efahtire original writing.

ARTICLE IlI
DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers The business and affairs of the corporation dalmanaged by or under
direction of the board of directors.

Section 2. Number, Election and Term of OfficeThe number of directors which shall constitute tinst
board shall be three (3). Thereafter the numbeliretctors shall be established from time to timerdolution of th
board. The directors shall be elected by a majarfitthe shares of the corporation's stock outstanéntitled to vot
thereon. The directors shall be elected in thismeamat the annual meeting of the stockholders, @xa® provided i
Section 4 of this Article Ill. Each director eledtehall hold office until a successor is duly eteicind qualified ¢
until his or her earlier death, resignation or rgal@s hereinafter provided.

Section 3. Removal and ResignatianAny director or the entire board of directors ntsyremoved at al
time, with or without cause, by the holders of gamty of the shares then entitled to vote at acebn of director:
Whenever the holders of any class or series an#leginto elect one or more directors by the pransi of th
corporation$ certificate of incorporation, the provisions bistsection shall apply, in respect to the remaovigthoui
cause of a director or directors so elected, tostite of the holders of the outstanding sharesatf ¢lass or series &
not to the vote of the outstanding shares as aevlaly director may resign at any time upon writtestice to th
corporation.

Section 4. Vacancies. Vacancies and newly created directorships regulfrom any increase in t
authorized number of directors may be filled by ¥b&e of a majority of the shares present in permomrepresented |
proxy at a meeting of the stockholders called fog purpose and entitled to vote thereon/ of theeshaf stoc
outstanding stock entitled to vote thereon. Eackctibr so chosen shall hold office until a successduly elected ar
qualified or until his or her earlier death, resijon or removal as herein provided.

Section 5. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of each newly elected boardireictors shall be he
without other notice than this by-law immediatefieg and at the same place as, the annual mestistgckholders.

Section 6. Other Meetings and NoticeRegular meetings, other than the annual meetih¢he board ¢
directors may be held without notice at such time at such place as shall from time to time berdered by
resolution of the board. Special meetings of thertd@f directors may be called by or at the reqakatmajority of th
total number of directors then in office on at temgentyfour (24) hours notice to each director, eitherspaally, b
telephone, by mail, by e-mail or by telegraph.

Section 7. Quorum, Required Vote and AdjournmerdA majority of the total number of directors thigm
office shall constitute a quorum for the transactib business. The vote of a




majority of directors present at a meeting at whachuorum is present shall be the act of the boadirectors. If
quorum shall not be present at any meeting of therd of directors, the directors present thereat adjourn th
meeting from time to time, without notice otherntennouncement at the meeting, until a quorum $sleatiresent.

Section 8. Chairman. The directors may appoint a chairman of the bedrd, unless otherwise determil
by the directors, shall, when present, presidellaneetings of the directors and shall have sudteopowers ar
duties as may be designated from time to time byditectors.

Section 9. Committees The board of directors may, by resolution passed majority of the total number
directors then in office, designate one or moremdtees, each committee to consist of one or mbthendirectors ¢
the corporation, which to the extent provided imhswesolution or these dgws shall have and may exercise
powers of the board of directors in the manageraadtaffairs of the corporation except as otherwiaged by law
The board of directors may designate one or maexuirs as alternate members of any committee, mdwp replac
any absent or disqualified member at any meetinthefcommittee. Such committee or committees stale suc
name or names as may be determined from time te bgnresolution adopted by the board of direct&act
committee shall keep regular minutes of its mestagd report the same to the board of directors\wguired.

Section 10. Committee Rules Each committee of the board of directors mayitBxown rules of procedu
and shall hold its meetings as provided by suosiugxcept as may otherwise be provided by a résolaf the boar
of directors designating such committee. Unles®milse provided in such a resolution, the presesfcat least
majority of the members of the committee shall beassary to constitute a quorum. In the eventahaember ar
that membes alternate, if alternates are designated by thedoaf directors as provided in Section 9 of thitde llI,
of such committee is or are absent or disqualifted, member or members thereof present at any mgeatid nc
disqualified from voting, whether or not such membe members constitute a quorum, may unanimougpoia!
another member of the board of directors to atii@tmeeting in place of any such absent or disfipdimember.

Section 11. Communications EquipmentMembers of the board of directors or any commaitteereof ma
participate in and act at any meeting of such baardommittee through the use of a conference ele@ or othe
communications equipment by means of which all gegsparticipating in the meeting can hear eachrpiue
participation in the meeting pursuant to this setghall constitute presence in person at the ngpeti

Section 12. Waiver of Notice and Presumption of Assemany member of the board of directors or
committee thereof who is present at a meeting sfealtonclusively presumed to have waived noticeuch meetin
except when such member attends for the expregsogeirof objecting at the beginning of the meetiogthe
transaction of any business because the meetmagt iawfully called or convened. Such member sbaltonclusivel
presumed to have assented to any action takensumkesr her dissent shall be entered in the msnotéhe meeting «
unless his or her written dissent to such acticall dte filed with the person acting as the secyetdrthe meetin
before the adjournment thereof or shall be forwdtoleregistered mail to the secretary




of the corporation immediately after the adjourntmehthe meeting. Such right to dissent shall nopla to an
member who voted in favor of such action.

Section 13. Action by Written Consent Unless otherwise restricted by the certificatenabrporation, an
action required or permitted to be taken at anytmgef the board of directors, or of any committeereof, may t
taken without a meeting if all members of the boardommittee, as the case may be, consent thieretating, anc
the writing or writings are filed with the minuteproceedings of the board or committee.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

Section 1. Number. The officers of the corporation shall be eledigdhe board of directors and shall cor
of a president, a chief executive officer, one arenvicepresidents, a secretary and a chief financial effiand suc
other officers and assistant officers as may bengeenecessary or desirable by the board of direcfary number ¢
offices may be held by the same person. In itséligm, the board of directors may choose notltafiy office for an'
period as it may deem advisable, except that tfieesf of chief executive officer and secretary khal filled a
expeditiously as possible.

Section 2. Election and Term of OfficeThe officers of the corporation shall be elecadually by the boa
of directors at its first meeting held after eaohw@al meeting of stockholders or as soon thereafi@onveniently m:
be. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created filled at any meeting of the board of direct&ach officer she
hold office until a successor is duly elected andlifjed or until his or her earlier death, resigoa or removal &
hereinafter provided.

Section 3. Removal. Any officer or agent elected by the board of cioes may be removed by the boar
directors whenever in its judgment the best intsreSthe corporation would be served thereby sieh removal she
be without prejudice to the contract rights, if aolthe person so removed.

Section 4. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in any office because obthe resignation, remov
disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by theard of directors for the unexpired portion ¢ term by the boa
of directors then in office.

Section 5. Compensation Compensation of all officers shall be fixed by thoard of directors, and
officer shall be prevented from receiving such cengation by virtue of his or her also being a doeof the
corporation.

Section 6. The Chief Executive OfficerThe chief executive officer shall be the chie¢extive officer of th
corporation; at such times as the Chairman of thar@is not present or no chairman has been apubishall presic
at all meetings of the stockholders and board fatibrs at which he is present; subject to the pswethe board «
directors, shall have general charge of the busjredairs and property of the corporation, andticdmover its officers
agents and employees; and shall see that all cadersesolutions of the board of directors areiedrnto




effect. Subject to the direction of the board akdiors, the chief executive officer shall exedubads, mortgages a
other contracts requiring a seal, under the sedhefcorporation, except where required or perohitig law to b
otherwise signed and executed and except whergighang and execution thereof shall be expresslggdeed by th
board of directors to some other officer or agdnthe corporation. The chief executive officer $helve such oth
powers and perform such other duties as may bendved by the board of directors or as may be pleyiin these by-
laws.

Section 7. The President The president shall, in the absence or disalilitthe chief executive officer, ¢
with all of the powers and be subject to all thetnietions of the chief executive officer. The pdent shall als
perform such other duties and have such other moa®ithe board of directors or theseldwys may, from time f
time, prescribe.

Section 8. Vice-Presidents The vice-president, or if there shall be morentbae, the vicgresidents in tt
order determined by the board of directors, sivallhe absence or disability of the president aefclxecutive office
act with all of the powers and be subject to all thstrictions of the president or chief executiwicer. The vice-
presidents shall also perform such other dutiesheavé such other powers as the board of directotsese bylaws
may, from time to time, prescribe.

Section 9. The Secretary and the Assistant Secretaridse secretary shall attend all meetings of trerdo
directors, all meetings of the committees therexf all meetings of the stockholders and recordhallproceedings
the meetings in a book or books to be kept for thapose. Under the chief executive offisesupervision, tt
secretary shall give, or cause to be given, aicastrequired to be given by theselaws or by law; shall have sL
powers and perform such duties as the board oftdirg the chief executive officer or theselays may, from time f
time, prescribe; and shall have custody of the @@te seal of the corporation. The secretary, casamnstant secreta
shall have authority to affix the corporate seahmy instrument requiring it and when so affixednay be attested
his or her signature or by the signature of sushstent secretary. The board of directors may geseral authority |
any other officer to affix the seal of the corparatand to attest the affixing by his or her sigmat The assists
secretary, or if there be more than one, the asgisecretaries in the order determined by thecbofadirectors, sha
in the absence or disability of the secretary, grenfthe duties and exercise the powers of the segrand sha
perform such other duties and have such other poagethe board of directors may, from time to tiprescribe.

Section 10. The Chief Financial Officer and the Assistant Treas. The chief financial officer shall ha
the custody of the corporate funds and securisieall keep full and accurate accounts of receiptsdaisbursements
books belonging to the corporation; shall depdsitn@nies and other valuable effects in the nanaktarthe credit ¢
the corporation as may be ordered by the boardre€tdrs; shall cause the funds of the corporatobe disburse
when such disbursements have been duly authotiakihg proper vouchers for such disbursements;stiadl rende
to the president and the board of directors, aegsilar meeting or when the board of directorsespires, an accot
of the corporation; shall have such powers andoperisuch duties as the board of directors, theigeasor these by-
laws may, from time to time, prescribe. If requitad




the board of directors, the chief financial offistrall give the corporation a bond (which shalléredered every six (
years) in such sums and with such surety or sgreseshall be satisfactory to the board of dirsctor the faithfu
performance of the duties of the office of chiefaincial officer and for the restoration to the @wgtion, in case
death, resignation, retirement, or removal fromceff of all books, papers, vouchers, money, aneérophnoperty ¢
whatever kind in the possession or under the cbofrthe chief financial officer belonging to therporation. Th
assistant treasurer, if any, shall in the absendgsability of the chief financial officer, perfiorthe duties and exerc
the powers of the chief financial officer, subjeztthe power of the board of directors. The assidi@asurer, if an
shall perform such other duties and have such qibwers as the board of directors may, from timine, prescribe.

Section 11. Other Officers, Assistant Officers and Agent®fficers, assistant officers and agents, if
other than those whose duties are provided fohase bylaws, shall have such authority and perform sudieda:
may from time to time be prescribed by resolutibthe board of directors.

Section 12. Appointed Officers. In addition to officers designated by the Boamdaccordance with tt
ARTICLE 1V, the Chief Executive Officer may appointher officers below the level of Boasappointed Vic
President as the Chief Executive Officer may frometto time deem expedient and may designate fcin stficer:
titles that appropriately reflect their positionsdaresponsibilities. Such appointed officers shalle such powers a
shall perform such duties as may be assigned to thethe Chief Executive Officer or the senior oéfi to whom the
report, consistent with corporate policies. An dpfeal officer shall serve until the earlier of suafficer's resignatic
or such officer's removal by the Chief Executivdi€gir at any time, either with or without cause.

Section 13. Absence or Disability of Officersin the case of the absence or disability of affigzer of the
corporation and of any person hereby authorizeéddbin such officer's place during such offieerabsence
disability, the board of directors may by resolatatelegate the powers and duties of such officantoother officer ¢
to any director, or to any other person whom it re@lgct.

ARTICLE V
INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND OTHERS

Section 1. Nature of Indemnity Each person who was or is made a party or isithned to be made a ps
to or is involved in any action, suit or proceedindnether civil, criminal, administrative or invegtive (hereinafter
“proceeding”),by reason of the fact that he or she, or a persarhom he or she is the legal representative, igas
director or officer, of the corporation or is or svaerving at the request of the corporation asreciir, officer
employee, fiduciary, or agent of another corporato of a partnership, joint venture, trust or otbeterprise, shall |
indemnified and held harmless by the corporatiotinéofullest extent which it is empowered to daustess prohibite
from doing so by the General Corporation Law of Btate of Delaware, as the same exists or may fierdz
amended (but, in the case of any such amendmegttmthe extent that such amendment permits tlparation tc
provide broader indemnification rights than sai@ lpermitted the corporation to provide prior to Istamendmen
against all expense, liability




and loss (including attorneydees actually and reasonably incurred by such peisoconnection with sut
proceeding) and such indemnification shall inurethe benefit of his or her heirs, executors and iabnators
provided, however, that, except as provided iniSec of this Article V, the corporation shall indeify any suc
person seeking indemnification in connection witpraceeding initiated by such person only if suobcpeding we
authorized by the board of directors of the corpora The right to indemnification conferred inghArticle V shall b
a contract right and, subject to Sections 2 anflthis Article V, shall include the right to be gaby the corporatic
the expenses incurred in defending any such praogea advance of its final disposition. The corgion may, b
action of its board of directors, provide indemeation to employees and agents of the corporatibh the sam
scope and effect as the foregoing indemnificatibdir@ctors and officers.

Section 2. Procedure for Indemnification of Directors and ©dfis. Any indemnification of a director
officer of the corporation under Section 1 of tAidicle V or advance of expenses under Section &hisf Article V
shall be made promptly, and in any event withimtyhi30) days, upon the written request of theawoeor officer. If :
determination by the corporation that the directoofficer is entitled to indemnification pursudntthis Article V i¢
required, and the corporation fails to respond witlixty (60) days to a written request for indetpnthe corporatio
shall be deemed to have approved the requestelfctinporation denies a written request for indercaiiion o
advancing of expenses, in whole or in part, omympent in full pursuant to such request is not maidiein thirty (30
days, the right to indemnification or advancesrastgd by this Article V shall be enforceable by thrector or office
in any court of competent jurisdiction. Such pefsocosts and expenses incurred in connection witisessfull
establishing his or her right to indemnification,whole or in part, in any such action shall alsaridemnified by tk
corporation. It shall be a defense to any sucloactother than an action brought to enforce a climmexpense
incurred in defending any proceeding in advancésofinal disposition where the required undertakiif any, ha
been tendered to the corporation) that the clairhastnot met the standards of conduct which makerinissibl
under the General Corporation Law of the State efadare for the corporation to indemnify the claninor the
amount claimed, but the burden of such defensd beabn the corporation. Neither the failure of ttwporatiol
(including its board of directors, independent legaunsel or its stockholders) to have made a detation prior t
the commencement of such action that indemnifioatibthe claimant is proper in the circumstancesabee he or s
has met the applicable standard of conduct sdt farthe General Corporation Law of the State ofaldare, nor a
actual determination by the corporation (includitsgboard of directors, independent legal counséiscsstockholder:
that the claimant has not met such applicable stahdf conduct, shall be a defense to the actiorcreate
presumption that the claimant has not met the epiplie standard of conduct.

Section 3. Article Not Exclusive. The rights to indemnification and the paymenierpenses incurred
defending a proceeding in advance of its final oésfoon conferred in this Article V shall not beckxsive of any othe
right which any person may have or hereafter aequirder any statute, provision of the certificaténoorporation
by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disedtd directors or otherwise.
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Section 4. Insurance The corporation may purchase and maintain ingeram its own behalf and on bel
of any person who is or was a director, officerptyee, fiduciary, or agent of the corporation @aswserving at tf
request of the corporation as a director, offieenployee or agent of another corporation, partmgrgbint venture
trust or other enterprise against any liabilityesitesd against him or her and incurred by him or ineany suc
capacity, whether or not the corporation would henee power to indemnify such person against suathility unde
this Article V.

Section 5. Expenses Expenses incurred by any person described indpettof this Article V in defending
proceeding shall be paid by the corporation in adesof such proceedingfinal disposition. Such expenses incu
by other employees and agents may be so paid wminterms and conditions, if any, as the boardirefctbrs deen
appropriate.

Section 6. Employees and AgentdPersons who are not covered by the foregoingigiams of this Article \
and who are or were employees or agents of theocatipn, or who are or were serving at the requésthe
corporation as employees or agents of another catipa, partnership, joint venture, trust or otkaterprise, may |
indemnified to the extent authorized at any timé&om time to time by the board of directors.

Section 7. Contract Rights The provisions of this Article V shall be deentedoe a contract right betwe
the corporation and each director or officer whoveg in any such capacity at any time while thisiode V and th
relevant provisions of the General Corporation lafwhe State of Delaware or other applicable lagviareffect, an
any repeal or modification of this Article V or asych law shall not affect any rights or obligaidhen existing wit
respect to any state of facts or proceeding thestieg.

Section 8. Merger or Consolidation For purposes of this Article V, references toe“ttorporation”shal
include, in addition to the resulting corporatiany constituent corporation (including any constituof a constituer
absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, ifséparate existence had continued, would have bagrpan:
authority to indemnify its directors, officers, arthployees or agents, so that any person who vgasra directo
officer, employee or agent of such constituent capon, or is or was serving at the request ohscanstituer
corporation as a director, officer, employee ornagd another corporation, partnership, joint veajurust or othe
enterprise, shall stand in the same position utidgrArticle V with respect to the resulting or gwing corporation &
he or she would have with respect to such constitc@ poration if its separate existence had caetin

ARTICLE VI
CERTIFICATES OF STOCK

Section 1. Form . The Corporation is authorized to issue sharesapital stock of the Corporation
certificated or in uncertificated form pursuantstxtion 158 of the General Corporation Law of theteSof Delawar:
The shares of the capital stock of the Corporasioall be registered on the books of the Corporatiotie order i
which they shall be issued. Any certificates foargs of the common stock, and any other shareapitat stock of th
Corporation represented by certificates, shallumalered, shall be signed by the Chairman of thedBoathe
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President, and by the Corporate Secretary or arstAss Secretary or the Treasurer or an Assistaggsurer. Any (
or all the signatures on these certificates mayaosimile. In case any officer, transfer agent egistrar who he¢
signed or whose facsimile signature has been plaped a certificate shall have ceased to be suftenftransfe
agent or registrar before such certificate is idsitemay be issued by the Corporation with the eaffiect as if he «
she were such officer, transfer agent or regisiréine date of issue.

Section 2. Lost Certificates The board of directors may direct a new certiioar certificates to be issuec
place of any certificate or certificates previousdgued by the corporation alleged to have beef) Kislen o
destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of tfeat by the person claiming the certificate of &tbw be lost, stole
or destroyed. When authorizing such issue of a oewtificate or certificates, the board of directonsy, in it
discretion and as a condition precedent to thearssel thereof, require the owner of such lost, stole destroye
certificate or certificates, or his or her leggbnesentative, to give the corporation a bond sefficto indemnify th
corporation against any claim that may be madenag#e corporation on account of the loss, theflestruction ¢
any such certificate or the issuance of such netificate.

Section 3. Fixing a Record Date for Stockholder Meetinda order that the corporation may determine
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote ay ameeting of stockholders or any adjournment thierd@ board ¢
directors may fix a record date, which record ddu@ll not precede the date upon which the resaldiking the recor
date is adopted by the board of directors, and hviecord date shall not be more than sixty (60)less than ten (1
days before the date of such meeting. If no reaate is fixed by the board of directors, the recdede fo
determining stockholders entitled to notice of @mvbte at a meeting of stockholders shall be thsecbf business !
the next day preceding the day on which noticeverg or if notice is waived, at the close of besis on the day ne
preceding the day on which the meeting is held.efednination of stockholders of record entitlechtice of or t
vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply tp adjournment of the meeting; provided, howeveat the board «
directors may fix a new record date for the adjedrmeeting.

Section 4. Fixing a Record Date for Action by Written Conseint order that the corporation may deterr
the stockholders entitled to consent to corporat®m in writing without a meeting, the board ofeditors may fix
record date, which record date shall not precedeal#ite upon which the resolution fixing the recdate is adopted |
the board of directors, and which date shall notrfmee than ten (10) days after the date upon wthiehresolutio
fixing the record date is adopted by the boardidatiors. If no record date has been fixed by therth of directors, tt
record date for determining stockholders entited@dnsent to corporate action in writing withounaeting, when r
prior action by the board of directors is requitgdstatute, shall be the first date on which a eigwritten conse
setting forth the action taken or proposed to Bertas delivered to the corporation by deliveryitsoregistered offic
in the State of Delaware, its principal place o$ibass, or an officer or agent of the corporatianiing custody of tt
book in which proceedings of meetings of stockhdare recorded. Delivery made to the corporasiargistere
office shall be by hand or by certified or registkmail, return receipt requested. If no recore drets been fixed |
the board of directors and prior action by the Haafrdirectors is required by statute, the recatedor determinin
stockholders entitled to consent to corporate agtionriting
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without a meeting shall be at the close of busimesshe day on which the board of directors addipesresolutio
taking such prior action.

Section 5. Fixing a Record Date for Other Purposeb order that the corporation may determine
stockholders entitled to receive payment of anyidgind or other distribution or allotment or anyhtg or th
stockholders entitled to exercise any rights irpees of any change, conversion or exchange of stocKor the
purposes of any other lawful action, the boardicéadors may fix a record date, which record ddtallsnot precec
the date upon which the resolution fixing the relcdate is adopted, and which record date shalbbenore than sixi
(60) days prior to such action. If no record datdixed, the record date for determining stockhdder any suc
purpose shall be at the close of business on tlleodawhich the board of directors adopts the rdswiurelating
thereto.

Section 6. Registered StockholdersPrior to the surrender to the corporation of ¢bdificate or certificate
for a share or shares of stock with a requestdordethe transfer of such share or shares, theocatipn may treat tt
registered owner as the person entitled to reatiwidends, to vote, to receive notifications, anldeowise to exercit
all the rights and powers of an owner. Except foalkdly executed proxy in accordance with ArtitleSection 10, th
corporation shall not be bound to recognize anytalgle or other claim to or interest in such sharshares on the p
of any other person, whether or not it shall haygess or other notice thereof.

Section 7. Subscriptions for Stock Unless otherwise provided for in the subscriptiagreemen
subscriptions for shares shall be paid in full athstime, or in such installments and at such tinassshall b
determined by the board of directors. Any call magiethe board of directors for payment on subsiomyst shall b
uniform as to all shares of the same class or a#l ghares of the same series. In case of dafathe payment of ar
installment or call when such payment is due, tharation may proceed to collect the amount duéhé sam
manner as any debt due the corporation.

ARTICLE VI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. Dividends. Dividends upon the capital stock of the corpomtisubject to the provisions of
certificate of incorporation, if any, may be deeldby the board of directors at any regular or isp@reeting, pursua
to law. Dividends may be paid in cash, in propatyin shares of the capital stock, subject to thavigions of th
certificate of incorporation. Before payment of atiyidend, there may be set aside out of any furidee corporatio
available for dividends such sum or sums as thectlirs from time to time, in their absolute disinet think proper &
a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, adaalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintagnany property (
the corporation, or any other purpose and the tireeanay modify or abolish any such reserve innttiaaner in whic
it was created.

Section 2. Checks, Drafts or OrdersAll checks, drafts or other orders for the paytefmoney by or to tt
corporation and all notes and other evidencesa#htedness issued in the name of the corporataihlsh signed k
such officer or officers, agent or agents of thepoaation,
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and in such manner, as shall be determined byutsolof the board of directors or a duly authodiz=zommitte:
thereof.

Section 3. Contracts The board of directors may authorize any offigeofficers, or any agent or agents
the corporation to enter into any contract or teaie and deliver any instrument in the name of@nbehalf of th
corporation, and such authority may be generabafiged to specific instances.

Section 4. Loans. Except to the extent prohibited by applicable,léve corporation may lend money to
guarantee any obligation of, or otherwise assigtd@ficer or other employee of the corporation 6rite subsidiary
including any officer or employee who is a directdrthe corporation or its subsidiary, whenevertha judgment «
the directors, such loan, guaranty or assistancg measonably be expected to benefit the corporafidme loar
guaranty or other assistance may be with or witlterest, and may be unsecured, or secured inrsacimer as tt
board of directors shall approve, including, withbmitation, a pledge of shares of stock of thepcwation. Nothin
in this section contained shall be deemed to d@niyt, or restrict the powers of guaranty or warsaat the corporatio
at common law or under any statute.

Section 5. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall endedD&eember 31 of each year, or
such other date as may be fixed by resolution®bibard of directors.

Section 6. Voting Securities Owned By CorporatiotYoting securities in any other corporation hejdthe
corporation shall be voted by the chief executiffecer, subject to the direction of the board ofeditors, unless tl
board of directors specifically confers authority wote with respect thereto, which authority may demeral c
confined to specific instances, upon some othesqreor officer. Any person authorized to vote sii@s shall hav
the power to appoint proxies, with general powesudistitution.

Section 7. Inspection of Books and Record&ny stockholder of record, in person or by ateyror othe
agent, shall, upon written demand under oath sidtie purpose thereof, have the right during theaubours fo
business to inspect for any proper purpose theocatipn’s stock ledger, a list of its stockholders andttser book
and records, and to make copies or extracts tloenefA proper purpose shall mean any purpose reboneated t
such persors interest as a stockholder. In every instance eviaer attorney or other agent shall be the persay
seeks the right to inspection, the demand undér siall be accompanied by a power of attorney o siher writing
which authorizes the attorney or other agent t@acoon behalf of the stockholder. The demand uodén shall b
directed to the corporation at its registered effit the State of Delaware or at its principal pla€t business.

Section 8. Section Headings Section headings in these layvs are for convenience of reference only
shall not be given any substantive effect in lingtor otherwise construing any provision herein.

Section 9. Inconsistent Provisions In the event that any provision of these lés is or becomi
inconsistent with any provision of the certificadé incorporation, the General Corporation Law o€ tBtate ¢
Delaware or any other applicable law, the provisiofthese by-
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laws shall not be given any effect to the exterdguath inconsistency but shall otherwise be givdirfduce and effect.

ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS

These by-laws may be amended, altered or repealkchew bylaws adopted at any meeting of the boai
directors by a majority vote of the directors presa a meeting at which a quorum is present. &oethat the pow
to adopt, amend, alter or repeal theldys has been conferred upon the board of directbadl not divest tr
stockholders of the corporation of the same powers.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) UNDER
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Thomas E. Richards, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of CDW Corporation (the "registrant

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15¢r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report
is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and
the preparation of financial statements for extepuaposes in accordance with generally accepteduading
principles;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registralidsglosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (tlgésteant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofanual report) that h
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contreko financial
reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer anlalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditonsl he audit committee of registrant's board oédtiors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adverssfgct the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innadvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

/sl Thomas E. Richards

Thomas E. Richards

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
CDW Corporation

May 8, 2015




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) UNDER
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Ann E. Ziegler, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Foil®HQLof CDW Corporation (the "registrant

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortaémstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer anaké responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1&4r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoige designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itsmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period inigh this report
is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepnaposes in accordance with generally accepteduatting
principles;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registralidsdlosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (tlgésteant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case ohanual report) that h
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant's internal contreko financial
reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer antllve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over

financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl éhe audit committee of registrant's board aéctiors (or persons

performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedumanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

/sl Ann E. Ziegler

Ann E. Ziegler

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
CDW Corporation

May 8, 2015




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350 OF CHAPTER 63
OF TITLE 18 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE

I, Thomas E. Richards, the chief executive office€DW Corporation (“CDW?”), certify that (i) the Quterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the three months ended March 31, 2015 (the “10e6@QDW fully complies with the requirements of Sent13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and (i) the information caméal in the 10-Q fairly presents, in all materegpects, the financial condition and results
of operations of CDW.

/sl Thomas E. Richards
Thomas E. Richards

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
CDW Corporation
May 8, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350 OF CHAPTER 63
OF TITLE 18 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE

I, Ann E. Ziegler, the chief financial officer ofB8V Corporation (“CDW?"), certify that (i) the Quartg Report on Form 10-Q for the
three months ended March 31, 2015 (the “10-Q”") B#Cfully complies with the requirements of Sectiti®(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and (i) the information caméal in the 10-Q fairly presents, in all materespects, the financial condition and results
of operations of CDW.

/sl Ann E. Ziegler

Ann E. Ziegler

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
CDW Corporation

May 8, 2015




